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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U70100MH1988PTC046631
Regd. Office: Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5t Floor, Off Eastern Express Highway,
Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai — 400 022
Tel: 4+91-22-6113 3000, Fax: +91-22-2409 3749, Corporate@runwal.com, www.runwal.com

NOTICE TO MEMBERS

Notice is hereby given that the 33 Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED to be held on Tuesday, November 30, 2021
at 5:30 p.m. at the registered office of the Company situated at Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5™
Floor, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai-
400 022 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

L. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the
year ended 31% March, 202! and the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon,

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2. Appointment of Mr. Mahesh Iyer (DIN: 01337787) as a Non-Executive Director

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to provisions
of Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Mahesh Iyer (DIN: 01337787), who was
appointed as an Additional Director with effect from March 01, 2021 in terms of Section
161 of the Act and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and
is bereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

3. Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Al_iditor

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modifications or amendments made thereof), the remuneration of Rs. 50,000/~
(Rupees Fifty Thousand only), payable to M/s N Ritesh & Associates, Cost Accountants,
bearing Firm Registration number R100675, who was appointed by the Board of Directors
of the Company as the Cost Auditor to conduct the audit of the cost accounting records
maintained by the Company relating to “Construction Business” for Financial Year 2021-
22 be and is hereby ratified and approved.”

FOR RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Y o

PALLAVI MATKARI - E’

DIRECTOR ;
DIN: 08054518

Place : Mumbai
Date : November 30, 2021
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NOTES:

* A member entitled to attend and vote at the meetings is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies
to attend and vote on g poll only, instead of himself and a PIOXy so appointed need not be 4
member of the company. The proxy in order to be effective, must be deposited at the
registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the meeting,

* A person can act as Proxy on behalf of members ot exceeding fifty (50) members and
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company
cartying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the tota] share capital of
the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder,

* M/s SM. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbaj having Firm Registration No.
310015E were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 29 Anmnual General

* The Explanatory Statement made pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is
annexed herewith,



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF_ THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 2

Mr. Mahesh Iyer (DIN: 01337787) was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of
Director w.e.f. March 1, 2021 in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 the aforementioned Directors holds
office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In terms of the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules under the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), their
appointment is to be confirmed by the Members of the Company.

The Board considers that the continued association of Mr. Mahesh Iyer would be of immense
benefit to the company. Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolutions set out at Item
No. 2 of the Notice relating to their appointment as a Director for approval by the Members.

None of the Directors, except Mr. Mahesh Iyer are concerned or interested in this resolution.

The Board recommends resolutions under Item No. 2 to be passed as Ordinary Resolution by
members.

Item No. 3

The Board has approved the appointment of the Cost Auditors o conduct the audit of the cost
records of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 at a remuneration of Rs. 50,000/
(Rupees Fifty Thousand only).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
applicable Rules, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor needs to be ratified by the
Shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, approval of the members is sought for passing
an Ordinary Resolution as set out in the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditor to conduct audit of the cost accounting records maintained by the Company
relating to “Construction Business” for the Financial Year 2021-22. Relevant documents in
respect of the said item are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of
the Company on all working days during the office hours up to the date of the Meeting.

None of the Directors or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested in the
resolution set out in the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval by the shareholders.

FOR RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

] ]

VAV, I

%) ad

St N
PALLAVI MATKARI g
DIRECTOR
DIN: 08054518

Piace : Mumbai
Date : November 30, 2021



FURTHER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECRETARIAL
STANDARD NO. 2 IS LISTED QUT HEREIN BELOW FOR ITEM NO. 2

Particulars : Mr. Mahesh lyer

Age 52 Years |

Qualification Qualified Accountant

Experience Mr. Mahesh lyer is a qualified Accountant and an alumni of

T.ondon Business School.

He has over 25 years of rich experience working in Real
Estate, Commercial, Retail and Hospitality Sectors,

Mr. lyer was earlier associated with organizations like
Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd, The Phoenix Mills Ltd, Xander
Advisors India, Magus Estates & Hotels Ltd, IL&FS
Investment Managers Ltd, Inorbit Malls Pvt. Lid and
Cornerstone Properties Pvt. Ltd. His last stint was with
Edelweiss REF.

Terms and Conditions of | -
Appointment

Remuneration Last Drawn | N.A.
(if any)

Remuneration Proposed to | NLA.
be paid

Date of first appointment | March 1, 2021
on the Board.

Shareholding in the|-
Company

Relationship with other | -
Directors, Managers and
other Key Managerial
Personnel.

Number of meetings | 1
aitended during the year

Number of other | 1
Directorship/ Chairmanship
of Committees of other
Board.




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U70100MH1988PTC046631
Regd. Office: Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5" Floor, Off Eastern Express Highway,
Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumnbai — 400 022
Tel: +91-22-6113 3000, Fax: +91-22-2409 3749, Corporateidrunwal.com, www . rupwal com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
338> ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING — NOVEMBER 30, 2021

Register Folie No. / DP 1D No.* / Client [D
No.*

Number of Shares held

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

I certify that | am a registered Member/Proxy for the registered Member of the Company. |
hereby record my presence at the 33" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at
the Registered Office of the Company at Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5" Floor, Off. Eastern
Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Mumbai — 400022, on Tuesday, November 30,
2021, at 5:30 p.m. (IST).

Name of the Member/Proxy Signature of Member/Proxy

NOTE: Members/Proxy holders are requested to bring this Attendance Slip to the Meeting
and hand over the same at the entrance duly signed.



RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U70100MH1988PTC046631
Regd. Office: Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5" Floor, Off Eastern Express Highway,
Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai — 400 022
Tel: +91-22-6113 30060, Fax: +91-22-2409 3749, Corporate:irunwal.com, www.runwal.com

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member (s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id: DP 11D

I/'We, being the member (8) Of i e s rnns s
shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

as my/our proxy fo attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 334
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, November 30, 2021,
at 5:30 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5%
Floor, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Mumbai - 400022, and at
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution Resolutions Optional
No.

For | Against

Ordinary Business
1 Adoption of the audited financial
statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021
and the reports of the Board of
Directors and the Auditors thereon.

Special Business
2 Appointment of Mr. Mahesh lver
(DIN: 01337787) as a Non-Executive




Director

3 Ratification of Remuneration of Cost
Auditor
Signed this.... ... day of il 2021
Signature of the Member Signature of Proxy
Notes:

(1} This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
al the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

(2) *This is only optional. Please put an ‘X' in the appropriatc column against the
resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against® column blank
agatnst any or all the reselutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as
he/she thinks appropriate.




To,
The Members,

DIRECTORS® REPORT

Ruuwal Developers Private Limited

Mumbai

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting the 33'Y Annual Report of the Company together
with the andited Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Particulars

Standalone

Consolidated

2020-21

2019-20

2020-21

2019-20

Total Income

6,84,12,51,745

12,88,24,00,989

6,84,12,51,744

12,88,30,10,231

Total Expenditure

6,15,80,55,398

11,44,18,62. 959

6,15,80,77,321

11,44,18,62,959

Profit /  (Loss)
Before Taxation

68,31,96,347

1,44,05,38,030

08,31,74,423

1,44,11,47,272

Share of Profit / Loss
of Joint Venture /
Associate

15,45,82,833

15,16,56,965

Profit / Loss before
exceptional  items
and tax from
continuing
operations

83,77,57,256

1,59,28,04,236

Less: Current Tax

EXPENSCSs

(22,06,00,000)

(52,76,23,502)

(22,06,00,000)

(52,76,23,502)

Less: MAT Credit
utilized

(3,95,37,705)

(29,02,87,361)

(3,95.37,705)

(29,02,87,361)

Less: Tax related to
previous year

(45,932)

92,162

(45,932)

92,162

Less: Deferred Tax

3,77,24,130

7,09,34,883

3,77,24,130

7,09,34,883

Profit / (Loss) After
Taxation

46,07,36,840

69,36,54,212

61,53,01,609

84,59,20,418

Other
Comprehensive
Income

(i) Items that will
not be reclassified
to profit or loss

Remesurement of
actuarial gains and
losses

23,89,603

9,77,990

23,89,603

9,77,990

Net (loss)/gain on
FVTOCI equity
securilies

7,03,32,373

7,32,55,344

7,03,32,373

7,32,55,344

(i)  Income  tax
relating to items that
will not be
reclassified to profit
or loss

(1,83,04,121)

(2,16,16,747)

(1,83,04,121)

(2,16,16,747)

Total

51,51,54,695

74,62,70,799

660,97,19,464

89,85,37,005




Rumwal Developers Privaie Limited Director’s Report FY 2020-21

Comprehensive
Income for the
period

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Standalone

During the year under review, the Standalone Profit After Tax stands at Rs. 46,07,36,840/- as
against Rs. 69,36,54,212/- in the previous year.

Consolidated

During the year under review, the Consolidated Profit After Tax stands at Rs. 61,53,01,609/-
as against Rs. 84,59,20,418/- in the previous yeat.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased to
Rs. 29,55,50,000 comprising of the following:

- Equity Share Capital : Rs. 10,35,00,000/- consisting of 1,03,50,000 Equity Shares
having face value of Rs. 10/- each and Rs. 55,00,000/- consisting
of 55,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each.

- Preference Share Capital  : (i) 7% Redeemable Preference Share Capital of Rs. 65,50,000
consisting of 6,55,000 Redeemable Preference Shares having the
face value of Rs. 10/- cach.

(i) 0.01% Redeemable Preference Share Capital of Rs.
18,00,00,000/- consisting of 1,80,00,000 Redcemable Preference
Shares each having value of Rs. 10/-.

As on March 31, 2021, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid—up Share Capital increased to Rs.
18,66,90,290/- comprising of the following:

- Equity Share Capital : Rs. 63,68,290 consisting of 6,36,829 Equity Shares of Rs 10/-
each

- Preference Share Capital  : (i) 7% Redeemable Preference Share Capital of Rs. 64,90,000
consisting of 6,49,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-
each

(i) 0.01% Redeemable Preference Share Capital of Rs.
17,38,32,000 consisting of 1,73,83,200 Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs, 10/- each

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2021,



Runwad Developers Privare Limited Director's Report FY 2020-21
COVvID 19

The outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus (i.e. COVID-19), which commenced in
December 2019 has now spread across the world. India has been no exception.

Adapting to the difficult sitoation, we continued to work from home and ensured all our
stakeholder requirements were addressed. Our employees were equipped with necessary tools
and infrastructure to handle all customer queries virtually. We also made sure that our labour
force and security staff were provided with requisite essentials regularly. All our sites have
been following the safety guidelines since the pandemic, and we have been constantly
updating them thus offering our workforce a safe environment to function.

However, the COVID-19 outbreak could become more severe and result in a more
widespread health crisis and/or result in a global recession because of disruptions of
economic activity. Any of these factors may have a material adverse effect on your
Company’s financial cendition and results of operations.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend dividend on Equity shares for the financial year ended 315t
March, 2021.

Pursuant to the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Runwal Realty Private Limited, Runwal
Projects Private Limited and Runwal Township Private Limited with Runwal Developers
Private Limited sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal of Mumbai
Bench vide its order dated on 4" July 2019, 6,49,000 7% Redeemable Preference shares of
Rs. 10 cach were allotted by the Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Companies
on 30" November 2019. During the period under review, your Directors had paid the
dividend of Rs. 4,54,300/- to the Preference Sharcholders.

Pursuant to the Scheme of merger of Runwal Builders Private Limited, Veear Property
Developers Private Limited, Runwal Properties Private Limited and Odeon Exhibitors Private
Limited with RDPL. sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal of Mumbai
Bench vide its order dated on 17" June, 2020, 17,383,200 0.01% Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Company were allotied to the Equity shareholders of Runwal
Builders Private Limited, Veear Property Developers Private Limited and Runwal Properties
Private Limited on 4" November 2020. During the period under review, your Directors had
paid the dividend of Rs. 7,048/~ to the Preference Shareholders.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

A scheme of Amalgamation was filed with the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT),
Mumbai Bench, for merger of Runwal Builders Private Limited (1 Transferor Company),
Veear Property Developers (Bombay) Private Limited ( 2™ Transferor Company), Runwal
properties Private Limited (3" Transferor Company), Odeon Exhibitors Private Limited (4%
Transferor Company) with Runwal Developers Private Limited (“RDPL”) (Transferee
Company) in the year 2017. The Hon’ble NCLT passed the order of merger on 17™ June,
2020 and the Order was filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on 9% July, 2020
which is the effective date of Merger.

Pursuant 1o the Scheme of merger of Runwal Builders Private Limited, Veear Property
Developers Private Limited, Runwal Properties Private Limited and Odeon Exhibitors Private
Limited with RDPL sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal of Mumbai
Bench vide its order dated on 17" June, 2020, 17,383,200 Redecmable Preference Shares of
Rs. 10/- each of the Company were allotted to the Equity shareholders of Runwal Builders



Rumwal Developers Private Limited Director’s Report FY 2020-21

Private Limited, Veear Property Developers Private Limited and Runwal Properties Private
Limited on 4" November 2020,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

{A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

i.  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy- Not applicable

it. The steps taken by the company for ulilizing alternate sources of energy Not
Applicable

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment — Not Applicable.

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

i.  The efforts made towards technology absorption — Not Applicable

ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution - Not applicable

iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned
from the beginning of the financial year
a) The details of technology imported- Not applicable
b) The year of import- Not applicable
¢) Whether the technology been fully absorbed- Not applicable
d} If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof- Not applicable

iv.  The expenditure incurred on Research and Development — Not applicable

. (€C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under review.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Number of Meeting of Board of Directors

During the financial year under review, 8 (eight) meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Company were held, which were duly convened with the requisite quorum. The Meeting of
the Board of Directors were held on (i) May 8, 2020; (ii) October 8, 2020; (ii1) November 4,
2020; (iv) November 30, 2020; (v) December 31, 2020; (vi) February 5, 2021; (vii) March
12, 2021 and (viii) March 31, 2021.

Number of Meeting of the Members of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR
Committee™)

The CSR Commitiee of the Company consists of three Members, Mr. Sanjay Daga, Mr.
Mahesh Iyer and Ms, Pallavi Matkari. During the year under review, 1 (one) meeting of the
members of CSR Committee was held on March 31, 2021.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors of the Company comprised of the following Directors as on March
31,2021:
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NAME DESIGNATION N
Mr. Sanjay Daga Director
Ms. Pallavi Matkari Director
Mr. Mahesh lyer Additional Director
Mr. Kishor Kumar Jain Director

During the year under review, Mr, Mahesh Iyer was appointed as an Additionat, Non-
Executive Director of the Company effective March 1, 2021. Your Board of Directors
recommend for his appointment as a Regular Director in the upcoming Annual General
Meeting.

The Company was not required to appoint Key Managerial Personnel pursuant to Companies
Act, 2013 as per the provisions of Section 203 rcad with Companies (Appoiniment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013,

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Nene of the employees of the Company is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits
prescribed under rule (5) sub rule (2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required, pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 extract of annual return in Form
MGT 9, forms part of this Board Report as Annexure L.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE & ASSOCIATE, COMPANY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement
containing salient features of the Financial Statements, highlights of performance of
subsidiaries / Joint Ventures / Associates is attached as Anmexure II to the Directors’ Report
of the Company in Form AOC-].

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS

A scheme of Amalgamation was filed with the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT),
Mumbai Bench, for merger of Runwal Builders Private Limited (1* Transferor Company),
Veear Property Developers (Bombay) Private Limited (2" Transferor Company), Runwal
properties Private Limited (3" Transferor Company), Odeon Exhibitors Private Limited (4™
Transferor Company) with Runwal Developers Private Limited (RDPL) (Transferee
Company) in the year 2017. The Hon’ble NCLT passed the order of merger on June 17, 2020
and the Order was filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on July 9, 2020 which is
the effective date of Merger.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

During the year under review, the relevant provisions relating to the performance evaluation
under the Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is of the opinion that there are no major risks affecting business of the Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or its employees during the year
under review within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made there under.

PARTICULARS OF 1.OANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Full particulars of investments, loans, guarantees and securities covered under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 provided during the financial year under review has been furnished
in the Notes 10 Accounts which forms part of the financials of the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

In accordance with section 139, 141, 142 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, M/s. S.M. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants having registration
number 310015E, were appointed as Auditors of the Company for a pertod of 5 years to hold
office from the conclusion of 29" AGM for a term of consecutive five years till the
conclusion of the 34" AGM of the Company at the remuneration determined by the Board.

The Notes on financial stalement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and
do not call for any further comments. The report of the Statutory Auditor for FY 2020-21

does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers.

PISCLOSURE OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

During the financial year 2020-21, as required under Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Statutory Auditors have evaluated and expressed an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on an audit. In their opinion, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021,

SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s Pramod S Shah & Associates, a firm of Company
Secretaries in Practice, have been appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The
Report in the Form MR 3 of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure IIL. There has
been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Secretarial
Auditors in their Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Annual Report on CSR activities, in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time to time, is annexed herewith as Annexure IV
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VIGIL MECHANISM

The Board of Directors of your Company has established a vigil mechanism headed by
Mr. Sanjay Daga, Director of the Company to hear the grievances of the employees/ any
person in the company and take steps to resolve the issues amicably and report the same to
the Board of Directors of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company is commifted fowards creating and maintaining a healthy work environment
free from any type of harassment. The Company always endeavors to create and provide an
environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.
The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace,
There is an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) which is responsible for redressal of
complaints related 1o sexual harassment.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY

The details of transactions/contracts/arrangements referred to in Section 188(1) of Companies
Act, 2013 entered by the Company with related party (ies) as defined under the provisions of
Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year under review, are
furnished in Form AOC 2 and is attached as Annexure V and forms part of this Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors
confirm that:

1. in the preparation of the annval accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2021, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures
in adoption of these standards;

il. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at March 31, 2021 and profit and loss of
the Company for the year ended on that date;

ifi. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

iv. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for period ended March 31, 2021 on a
‘going concern’ basis.

v. the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditors
have not reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its officers or
employees to the Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Secretarial Standards as applicable to the Company were
duly complied.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors take this opportunity to thank the Banks, Central and State
Government authorities, Employees ete. and all stakeholders for their continued cooperation
and support to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

B g

A

g _:S,I{f""hé.w’
Mahesh lyer
Dircctor
DIN: 01337787

Place : Mumbai
Date : November 30, 2021



ANNEXURE ]

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended March 31, 2021
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN:- U70100MH1988PTC04663 |

ii) Registration Date — March 22, 1988

i) Name of the Company - RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the | Private Limited Company
Company

V) Address of the Registered Runwal & Omkar BEsquare, 5" floor, Opp. Sion
office and contact details Chunabhatti Signal, OfT, Iiastern Express Highway, Sion

(East), Mumbai — 400 022
Tel. : 91 22 — 61133000
vi) Whether listed company Unlisted

vii) Name, Address and Contact |-
details of Registrar and
Transfer Agent, if any

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:-

Sk
No. Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
main products / services Product/ service the Company
]
03.29%
Construction of residential complex 110

111. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S. Name and CIN/GLN Holding/ Yo Applicable
No | Address of the Subsidiary/ of Shares | Section
Company Associate Held
1 [ Avalor U70109MH2019PTC324563 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Developers

Private Limited
Office No. 2, 61
Floor, Runwal
& Omkar
Esquare,

Opposite  Sion




Chunabhatti

Signal,  Off.
Eastern Express
Highway, Sion
(East), Mumbai
- 400 022

| Signal,
Ston East
Mumbai -
400022
Wheelabrator U9999OMHI1959PLCO1 1472 Associate 34.26% | Sec 2(6) of
Alloy Castings Companies
Ltd. Act, 2013
Lal Bahadur
Shastri Marg
Bhandup
{(West)
Mumbai -
400078
Mabharashtra
R Malt | U45201MH2006PTC163273 Joint Venture 49.75% Sec 2(0)
Developers Pvi. of
Ltd. Companies
Runwal & Act, 2013
Omkar
Esquare, 5t
floor, Sion
Chunabhatti
Signal, Off.
Liastern Express
Highway, Sion
{East), Mumbai

| =400 022 I
R Retail | U70200MH2018PTC313615 Joint Venture 43.57 % Sec 2 (6)
Ventures Pyt of
Lid. Companies
Runwal & Act, 2013
Omkar
Esquare, 6
floor,  Office
Neo. 2 Sion
Chunabhatti

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Equity)
i) Category-wise ShareHolding :

CLASS A EQUITY SHARES



Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held af the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end
of the year

Yo
Chan
ge
durin
g the
year

De | Physica
mat |1

Total

%o of
total
sharce

De

at

Physica
1

| Total

% of
total

share
8§

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

5,60,145

5.60,145

5,60,145

5,60.145

87.96

b) Central
Govt

c) State Govt
{s)

d) Bodies
Corp.

) Banks / Fl

f) Any
Other....

Sub-total (A)
(1):-

(2) Foreign

a) NRls -
Individuals

b) Other—
Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/ Il

¢) Any Other....

Sub-total (A)
(2):-

Total
shareholding of
Promoter (A) =
(A} H(A)2)

- { 5,060,145

3,060,145

87.96

5,60,14
5

5,00,145

87.96

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/FI

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govi(s)




e) Venture
Capital Funds

) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture  Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)():-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
sharcholders
holding  nominal
share capital upto
Rs. | lakh

222

222

0.034

222

222

0.034

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

11,279

11,279

1.77

11,279

11,279

1.77

c) Others
(specify)

i)Others:HUF

26,462

26,462

4.16

206,462

26,4602

4.16

ii)Others: held by
Partnership firms

38,721

38,721

6.08

38,721

38,721

6.08

Sub-tetal
B)2):-

76684

76684

12.04

76684

76684

12.04

Total Public
Shareholding
(By=(BX1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+(C)

636829

636829

100

636829

636829

100




(ii) Shareholding of promoters

Sr.
No. Shareholders Name

Shareholding at the beginning

of the year

Share holding at the end of

the
year

% of

total Pledged /

Yaof
Shares

Yoof Yo

% of | Shares | change

total | P

ledged / in

No of shares | encumbere No of share | encumber | share
Shares of d Shares s of ed holding
compa to total comp | tototal | during
ny shares any shares the
year
I. | Mr. Sandeep Runwal | 560,145 | 87.96 - 5,60,145 | 87.96 - -
Total 5,600,145 | 87.96 - 5,60,145 | 87.96 - -

(iii) Change in Promofers’ Sharcholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during
Neo. beginning of the year the year
% of total % of total
No. of shares | shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
company company
1. Mr. Sandeep Runwal
At the beginning of
the year 5,60,145 87.96 5,60,145 87.96
Date wise Increase Decrease in
Promoters Share holdingduring
the year
specifying the reasons No Change
forincrease /decrease
(e.g.allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year
5,60,145 87.96 5,60,145 87.96




(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Dircctors, Promoters and Holders
of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr.
No.

Sharcholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

Name

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

%% of total
shares of the
company

S.S. Runwal HUF

At the
the year

beginning  of

26462

4.16

20462

4.16

Daie  wise Increase /
Decrease  in Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons
Tor increase /decrease {e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

26462

4.16

26462

4.16

Mrs. Privanka Runwal

At the
the year

beginning  of

11279

1.77

11279

1.77

Date wise Increase /
Decreasc  in Promoters
Share holdingduring the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transler / bonus/
sweat equitly elc):

No Change

At the End of the year (or
on the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

11279

1.77

11279

1.77

Mrs. Sangeeta Vikas Lalwani

At the
the year

beginning  of

111

0.02

111

0.02

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in  Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc);

No Change




At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

111 0.02

111

0.02

Mr. Vikas Lalwani

At the beginning of

the year

111 0.02

111

0.02

Date  wise Increase /
Decrease  in Promoters
Share holding during the
year

specifying the reasons for
increase  /decrease  (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweal equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year { or
on the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

111 0.02

171

0.02

Jointly held by Mr.Subhash Suganial Runwal, Mvs. Chanda Subh
Runwal and Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal on behalf of Runwal Construction

ash Runwal, Mr

. Sandeep Subhash

At the
the year

beginning  of

10,722 1.68

10,722

1.68

Date  wise Increase /
Decrease  in Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweal equity elc):

No Change

At the End of the vear ( or
on the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

10,722 1.68

10,722

1.68

Jointly held by Mr.Subhash Suganlal Runwal, Mrs. Chanda Subhash Runwal, Mr. Sandeep Subhash
Runwal, Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal and Mrs. Sangeeta Vikas Lalwani on behalf of Runwal &

Associates

At the beginning of

the year 9069 1.42 9069 1.42
Date wise Increase /

Decrease  in Promoters

Share holding during the

year specifying the reasons No Change

for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):




At the End of the year ( or

on the date of separation, it |

separatedduring the year)

069 1.42 9069 .42

Jointly held by Mrs.Chanda Subhash Runwal, Mr. Sandeep Subhash Runwal and Mr. Subodh

Subhash Runwal on behalf of Anand Developers

At the Dbegianing of
the year

9,465 1.49 9,465 1.49

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in  Promoters
Share holdingduring the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity elc):

No Change

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

9,465 1.49 9,465 1.49

Jointly held by Mr. Subhash S. Runwal (HUF), Mrs.Chanda Subhash Runwali, Mr. Sandeep Subhash

Runwal and Mr. Subedh Subhash Runwal on behalf of Sandeep Construction

At the beginning of
the year

9,465 1.49 9,465 1.49

Date  wise Increase /
Decrease  in Promoters
Share holding during the
year

specifying the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

9,465 1.49 9,465 1.49




(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr.

No.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the

year

Name

No. of shares

%o of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

Mr. Mahesh Iyer
fwef March I
2021)

At the beginning
of

the year 0 0
Dale wise Increase

/Decrease in

Promoters  Share

holding

during the year

specifying the No Change
reasons for

increase /

decrease—(Transfer

of shares):

At the End of 0 0

the year




{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sk, Shareholding at the Cumaulative Shareholding during the
Nao. beginning of the year year
% of total % of total
Name No. of shares | shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
_______ company company

2 | Mr. Sanjay Daga

At the beginning

of

the year 0 - 0 -
Date wise Increase

/Decrease in

Promoters Share

holding

during the year

specifying the No Change
reasons for

increase /

deerease(Transfer

of shares):

At the End of
the year

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Sharcholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. beginning of the year year
No. of % of total % of total
Name i shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
shares
company company
3 Ms. Pallavi
’ Matkari

At the beginning

of 0 0 0 0

the year

Date wise

Increase

/Decrease in

Promoters Share

holding

during the year

specifying the

rgason); ; for No Change

increase /

decrease

(e.g.allotment /

transfer / bonus/

sweat equity etc):




Atthe End of
the year

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr, Sharcholding at the Cumulative Sharcholding during the
No. beginning of the year year
No. of % of total % of total
Name shares shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
company company

Mr. Kishorkumar
4. .

Jain

At the beginning

of 0 0 0 0

the year

Date wise

Increase

/Decrease in

Promoters Share

holding

during the year

specifying lhe No Change

reasons for

increase /

decrease

(e.g.allotment  /

transfer / bonus/

sweat equity efc):

At the End of 0 0 0 0

the year




V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured
Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans ’ Indebtedness
depaosits

Indebtedness at the
beginning of
the financial year

i) Principal Amount

7,099,035218

1,107,904,993

8,206,940,211

ii) Interest duc but not paid

iif} Interest accrued but not

due 39,367,257 39,367,257
Total (itii+iii) 7,138,402,475 | 1,107,904,993 8,246,307,468
Change in Indchtedness

during

the financial ycar

Addition 1,549,782,685 173,832,000 1,723,614,685
Reduction 5.243,117,116 898,742,351 6,141,859,467
Net Change 3.693.334,431 | -724.910,351 -4,418,244,782
Indebtedness at the end of

the financial year

Principal Amount 3,405,700,787 382,994,642 3,788,695,429
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
:;:l)elnterest acerued but not 17,767,753 ) 17.767.753
Total (itiit+iii) 3,423,468,540 382,994,642 3,806,463,182

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/

Manager

Total
Amount

_Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions -
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

] (b) Value of perquisites u/s

17(2)

Income-tax Act, 1961

1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,

2 Stock Option




Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act




B. Remunevation fo other direciors;

Sr
N
o.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

Mr,
Sanjay
Daga

Mr.
Mahesh
Iyer

Ms. Pallavi
Matkari

Mr.
Kishorku
mar Jain

1. Independent Directors

» Fee for attending board
/ committee meetings

* Commission

» Others, please specify

Total (1)

2. Other Non-Executive
Directors

« Fee for attending board /
committec meetings

« Commission
= Others, please specify
(Remuneration)

Rs.
61,96,140/-

Rs.
7,46,785/-

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the
Act

C.

REMUNERATION TO

MD/MANAGER/WTD

KEY MANAGERIAL  PERSONNEL

OTHER

Sl
no.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Company
Secretary

CFO

Total

Gross salary

the Income-tax Act, 1961

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of

(b) Value of perquisites u/s

THAN




17¢2) Income-tax Act, [961

(c) Profits m lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
Tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify

Others, please specify

Total




VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

ng

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Raal
the Description | Penalty/Punishment/Compoun RD /
Companies ding fees imposed CLT/ any (give

Act COURT) Det.uls)

A. COMPANY

Penalty )} i i )

Punishment | ) ) )

Compoundi | ) ) )

B, DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compoundi

ng
C. OTHER OFFICERS T

N DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishmen
{

Compound
ng

For and on behalf of the Board
Runwal Developers Private Limited

aga
or
DIN 50763’

Place
Date

: Mumbai
: November 30, 2021

Mahcsh lycr
Director
DIN: 01337787




Annexure I1

FORM NO. AOQC.1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint venfures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with
rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part ""A": Subsidiaries
{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl No. 1

Name of the subsidiary Avalor Developers Private Limited

Reporting period for the | F.Y. 2020-2]
subsidiary concerned, if
different from the
holding company's
reporting period

Reporting currency and | N.A.
Exchange rate as on the
last date of the relevant
financial year inthe case
of foreign subsidiaries

Share capital 1,00,000
Reserves & surplus (40,812)
Total assets 8,00,93,224
Total Liabilitics 8,00,33,400
Investments

Turnover

Profit before taxation -21923

Provision for taxation

Profit after taxation

Proposed Dividend

% of shareholding 100

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations — N, A.
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. — N.A.



Parvt "B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
AssociateCompanies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures =~ |RMall =~ | Wheelabrator -
' e e | Private Limited .| Limited =~
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures - -
heldby the company on the year end

No. 26,84,284 -12,22,705
Amount of Investment in Associates/}oint 4,62,99,567 17,20,86,000
Venture

Extend of Holding % 49.75% -34.26%
3. Description of how there is significant  Joint Venture Associate
influence

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture - -
isnot consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to Sharcholding  -865859376 111176118
asper latest audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit/ L.oss for the year (9578930) 582113261
i.  Considered in Consolidation (4765518) 198822684
1. Not Considered in Consolidation -(4813412) 383290577

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. — N.A.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during
the year. - N.A,

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is
to becertified.

For and on behalf of the Board

S -
Mahesh Iver
Director
DIN: 01337787

Place: Mumbai

Date : November 30, 2021




ANNEXURE IV

CSR ANNEXURE: Part of Directors Report

1. Briel outline on CSR Policy of the
Company:

The Company is committed to improving the quality
of life of the underprivileged and disadvantaged
sections of the local community as well as society at
large. This policy has been developed with an aim to
lay down guidelines for the Company to undertake,
implement and monitor various projects and
programs that ensures sustainable development of the
community within which it exists.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7
of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and
amount required for set off for the
financial year, if any

Sr. | Name of | Designation/Natur | Number of Meetings of { Number o Meetings of
No. | Director e of Directorship [ CSR - Committec  held | CSR committee attended
during the year during the year
Mr.  Sanjay Member ] |
Daga
2 | Mr. Mahesh Member 1 1
lyer '
3 | Mr.  Pallavi Member I 1
Matkari
3. Provide the web-link where | Not Applicable
Composition of CSR committee, CSR
Policy and CSR projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of
the company.
. Provide the details of Impact assessmen( | Not Applicable
of CSR projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule & of the
Companies (Corporale Sacial
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the report).
. Details of the amount available for sct | Not Applicable

. Average net profit of the company as per
section 135(5)

Rs. 8635,707,166.10/-




7. (a) Two percent of average net profiv of’

the company as per section 133(3)

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects
or programmes or activitics of the
previous financial years.

{¢) Amount required to be set oft for the
financial year. it any

(d) Totai CSR obligation for the financial
year (7a+7b-7¢).

N.A.

N.A.

Rs. 17.314,143.32/-

Rs. 17,314,143.32/-

8. () CSR amount spent or uaspent for the financial year:

Total Amount | Amou | Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund
Spent for the | nt Unspent CSR Account as per | specified under Schedule VII as
Financial Unspe | seetion 135(6). per second proviso te section
Year. (in Rs.)) | nt (in 135(5).
Rs.)
Rs. NIL NIL NIL
17,314,143.32/
Sr. | CSR Sector Projec | Amount Amount Cumulati | Amount
No. | project or | in ts  or | outlay spent  on | ve spent
activity which progr | (budget) the projects | expendifu | Direct of
identified | the ams project or | or re upto to | threugh
Project 1) programs | programs | the implementi
is covered | Local | wise Sub — | reporting | ng-ageney™
area heads: period
or (1) Direct
other expenditur
) ¢ on
Specif projects or
y the programs
State 2)
and Overheads
distric
t
where
projec
ts or
progr
ams
was
under
taken




Runwal Promoting | Mumb | Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs,
Foundation | education | ai 17,314,143, | 17,314,143, | 17.314,14 | 17,314.143.
as per the 32/- 32/- 3.32/- 32/-
Notificatio
n  dated
27th
February,
2014,
Schedule
VII (ii) for
promoting
of
education
Total Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
17,314,143, | 17,314,143, {17,314,14 | 17,314,143,
32/- 32/- 3.32/- 32/-

9. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

Naot Applicable

10. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects Tor the financial year:

Refer point no 8

11. ) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Not Applicable

12. Details of ('SR amount spent in the financial year for ongeing projeets of the preceding
financial year(s):

Not Applicable

13. In case of creation or acquisition of capilal asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

a.  Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

Not Applicable

14. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating (o the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (assct-wise details),

a.  Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

Not Applicable




15 Detals ol the entity or public authority or beneliciary under whose mame such capital asset is
registered. their address ¢etc.
Not Applicable

16, Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired {including complete address and
location ol the capital asset),
Not Applicable

17. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed (o spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5).
Not Applicable

Name of Director : Mahesh [yer
DIN 1 01337787
&

Signature



Annexare ¥V

FORM NG, AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause () of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Aet and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (13 of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm’s fength transaction under third proviso therefo.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or {ransactions not al Arm’s length basis.

Sr. Particulars Details
No.

[._ | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship -

2. | Natusre of contracts/arrangements/transaction -

3. | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction -

4. | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or -

transaction including the value, if any

h

Justification for entering into such contracts or -
arrangements or transactions’

6. | Date of approval by the Board -

7. | Amount paid as advances, i any -

8. | Date on which the special resofution was passed in -
General meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Sr. Particulars RPT-1 RPT-2 RPT-3

No.

1. | Name (s) of the related | Runwal Dhruva Woollen Horizon Projects
party &  nature  of | Constructions [Mills Private Limited [Private Limited
relationship

2. { Nature of | sale, purchase or pale, purchase orsale, purchase or
coniracts/arrangemenis/tra | supply of any fupply of any goods orsupply of any goods
nsaction goods or [materials; yr materials;

materials;
Body corporate whoseBody corporate
Firm in which Board of Directors,whose Board of]
director, manager jmanaging director or|Directors, managing
or manager isdirector or manager is
his relative 1s a accustomed to act injaccustomed to act
partner accordance with thefin accordance with)
advice, directions orfthe advice,
instructions  of  aldirections or
director or manager jinstructions of a
director or manager




FY 2020-21

3. | Duration of the FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21
confracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4, | Salient terms of the | Sale of Materials  [Sale of Materials Sale of Materials
contracts or arrangements | Rs. 3,58,972/- Rs. 99 360/- Rs. 25,25,600/-
or transaction including the
valuc, if any

5. {Date of approval by the 08/10/2020 12/03/2021 04/11/2020
Board 05/02/2021 3171212020

12/03/2021 05/02/2021
31/03/2021 12/03/2021

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any

Sr.- Parficulars RPT-4 RPT-5 RPT-6

No.

1. | Name (s) of the related | R Retail Ventures [Histyle Retail Private JHorizon Projects
party &  nature  of | Private Limited  |[Limited Private Limited
relationship

2. | Nature of | sale, purchase or kale, purchase orgale, purchase or
contracts/arrangements/tra | supply of any kupply of any goods orsupply of any goods
nsaction goods or materials; or malterials;

materials;

Body corporate whose[Body corporate
Body  corporate [Board of Directors,whose Board of]
whosc Board of managing director or[Directors, managing
Directors, manager isidirector or manager
managing director ccustomed (o act inhs accustomed to act
or manager is hccordance with thefin accordance with
accustomed to act ldvice, directions orfhe advice, directions
in accordance with jinstructions  of  apr instructions of a
the advice, director or manager irector or manager
directions or
instructions of a
director or
manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. |[Salient terms of the | Sale of Materials [Sale of Materials Purchase of]
coniracts or arrangements | Rs. 18,49,200 Rs. 3,57,402/- Materials Rs,
or transaction including the 1,81,709/-
value, if any

5. [ Date of approval by the 31/12/2020 08/10/2020 08/10/2020
Board

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -

if any




Sr. Particulars RPT-7 RPT-8 RPT-9

No.

1. {Name (s) of the related { Runwal R Retail Ventures Histyle Retail
party &  nature  of | Constructions Private Limited Private Limited
relationship

2. | Nature of | sale, purchase or fleasing of property offsale, purchase oy
contracts/arrangements/tra | supply of any any kind; upply of any goods
nsaction goods or br materials:

materials;
Body corporate whose[Body corporate
Firm in which [Board of Directors,jwhose Board of
director, manager managing director oFDirectors, managing,
or his relative isa  jmanager 1s accustomedldjrector or manager
partner to act in accordancelis accustomed 1o act
with  the  advice,fin accordance with
directions Otfthe advice,
instructions  of  aldirections or
director or manager instructions of a
: director or manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21
coniracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. | Salient terms of the | Purchase of Income from SublAdvance received|
contracts or arrangements | Materials Rs. [Letting Rs. 32,90,279/-pgainst material
or transaction including the | 3,23,977/- supply Rs.
value, if any 2, 00,00,000/-

5. [ Date of approval by the 05/02/2021 04/11/2020 05/02/2021
Board 12/03/2021

31/03/2021

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any

Sr. Particulars RPT-10 RPT-11 RPT-12

No.

1. | Name (s) of the related | R Mall R Mall Developers R Retail Ventures
party &  nature  of | Developers Private Limited Private Limited
relationship Private Limited

2. | Nature of | sale, purchase or availing or rendering offavailing or

confracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

supply of any
goods or
materials;
Body  corporate
whose Board of
Directors,
managing

ANy Services;

Body corporate whose
Board of Directors,
managing director or|
manager is accustomed
to act in accordance
with  the  advice,
directions o

rendering of any
services;

Body corporate
whose Board of
Directors, managing
director or manager|
is accustomed to act
in accordance with




director or
manager is
accustomed to act
in accordance with
the advice,
directions or
instructions of a
director or
manager

instructions  of
director or manager

[=3]

the advice,
directions or
instructions of a

cirector or manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4, [ Salient terms of the [ Sale of Electricity [Business FacilityfBusiness  Facility
contracts or arrangements | Rs. 4,78,98,277/- KServices Rs.Services Rs.
or transaction including the 59,90,000/- 3,00,00,000/-
value, if any

5. {Date of approval by the 04/11/2020 30/11/2020 08/10/2020
Board 30/11/2020 04/11/2020

05/02/2021 05/02/2021
31/03/202]

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any

Sr. Particulars RPT-13 RPT-14 RPT-15

No.

1. [Name (s) of the related | Ariane Orgachem [Ariane Orgachem [Horizon Projects
party &  nature  of | Private Limited  [Privale Limited Private Limited
relationship

2. | Nature of | availing or |Availing of ICDs Providing 1CDs
contracts/arrangements/tra | rendering of any
nsaction services; Body corporate whoseBody corporate

Board of Directors,whose Board of
Body corporate managing director or[Directors, managing
whose Board of manager is accustomedidirector or manager,
Directors, (o act in accordancelis accustomed to act
managing with  the  advice,fin accordance with
director or directions orthe advice,
manager instructions  of  aglirections of|
| 1s accustomed to girector or manager  finstructions of a
act director or manager
in accordance with
the advice,
directions or
instructions of a
director or
manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21

contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction




4. | Salient terms of the | Maintenance Inter Corporate[lnter Corporate
contracts or arrangements | Service given Deposit availed Deposit given
ot transaction including the | Rs. 19.87.612/- Rs. 84,03.,00.000/- Rs. 81,40,00,000/-
value, if any
5. | Pate of approval by the 31/12/2020 31/03/2021 08/10/2020
Board 05/02/2021 04/11/2020
31/03/202] 30/11/2020
31/12/2020
05/02/2021
12/03/2021
31/03/2021
6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any
Sr. Particulars RPT-16 RPT-17
No.
1. [Name (s) of the related { R Retail Venturcs Private JAvalor Developers Private
party &  nature  of | Limited Limited
relationship
2. | Nature of | Providing ICDs * [Providing 1CDs
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction Body corporate whose Board [Body corporate whose Board of

of  Directors,  managing
director or  manager Is
accustomed to act In

accordance with the advice,
directions or instructions of a
director or manager

Direclors, managing director or
Imanager 1s accusiomed to act
in accordance with the advice,
directions or instructions of a
director or manager

3. | Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

FY 2020-21

FY 2020-21

Salient terms of the
contracts or arrangements
or transaction including the
value, if any

Inter Corporate Deposit given
Rs. 1,00,00,000/-

[nter Corporate Deposit given
Rs. 16,00,00,000/-

5. | Date of approval by the 08/05/2020 31/12/2020
Board 05/02/2021
6. [ Amount paid as advances, - -
if any

For and on behalf of the Board

CD:&«"I%_
S?ﬂi%}’ Daga
Dir !
DIN: 64507

Mumbaij
November 30, 2021

Mahesh Iver
Director
DIN: 01337787
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/s.Runwal Developers Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2021, and the
statement of profit and loss including Other Comprehensive Income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the standalone financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS’) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, and its profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Actand the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

HEAD OFFICE : 1, BALARAM DE STREET, KOLKATA - 700 006, PHONE : 033-40081601
BRANCH OFFICE : 14B, CAMAC STREET, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA - 700 017, PHONE : 033-40650378



Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis
Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
information and the chairman’s statement’ but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Actwith respect to the preparation of these standalonelnd AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind ASfinancial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind ‘ASfinancial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so. ' ' i '

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Comipany’s financial reporting
process. : APl '




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all




relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of accounts of the company.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which would impact
its financial position in its standalone financial statements.- Refer Note 38c of the
standalone financial statements.




ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2021

For S M Gupta& Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No:310015

N
SeénaRamgarhia
Place: Mumbai - Partner
Date:30™ November, 2021 Membership No: 067157
UDIN :22067157AAAAAAS5349



iii.

iv.

Vi.

Annexure — A to Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of ‘Report under other legal and regulatory requirements’ of the
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of evendate)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme for physical verification, which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and the nature of its

assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of

the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

the Act.

(a) The Company has granted interest free loans to parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act. In our opinion, the rate of interest
and other terms and conditions on which the loan has been granted are, prima

facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(b) In case of loan granted to the body corporate listed in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, the borrower have been regular in the repayment

of the principal and interest as stipulated.

(c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loans granted to a body

corporate listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Act, as applicable,have been complied with by the

Companyin respect of, investments made and, guarantees, and securities given.

According to information and explanations provided to us, the company has not obtained
deposits from public as defined according to the provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under. Accordingly, provisions of

clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company in
pursuance to the rules made by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records
under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for certain products of the company and
are of the opinion that prima facie prescribed accounts and records have been maintained.
We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to

determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted
unsecured loans, tothree parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of



vii.

(a)

(b)

According to information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance,duty of customs, duty of excise, income tax, goods and service tax,cess and
other material statutory dues,asapplicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance,duty of customs,
duty of excise, income tax, goods and three service tax,cess and other material
statutory dueswere in arrears as at March 31%, 2021 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
records of the company examined by us, there are no dues of provident fund,
employees’ state insurance,duty of customs, duty of excise, income tax,sales tax,
service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax,cess and other material statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any disputes except

Period to
wihich the| Amount of
Sr. | Name of | Nature  of N dispute Forum where the dispute
No. | Statute Dues (Rs. In | is pending
relates lakhs)
(F.Y.)
Income  Tax ;
1 Act, 1961 Income Tax | 2008-09 1.922.97 ITAT, Mumbai
Income  Tax :
2 Act, 1961 Income Tax | 2009-10 5.412.04 ITAT, Mumbai
Income  Tax : .
3 Act, 1961 Income Tax | 2011-12 2.242.06 ITAT, Mumbai
Income  Tax .
4 Act, 1961 Income Tax | 2015-16 162.65 CIT (A) Mu_mbal
Income  Tax :
D Act, 1961 Income Tax | 2011-12 144.44 CIT (A) Mumbeai
Income  Tax . ;
6 Act, 1961 Income Tax | 2016-17 13.82 CIT (A) Mumbai
Income  Tax :
7 Act, 1961 Income Tax | 2018-19 168.02 | CIT (A) Mumbai
Income  Tax :
8 Act, 1961 Income Tax | 2016-17 33.34 CIT (A) Mumbai
Income  Tax :
9 Act, 1961 Income Tax | 201 8-] 9 221.51 CIT (A) Mumbai
Finance Act, Joint Commissioner

1994 12.71 CGST & CX

Service Tax | 2014-15




viil,

ix.

xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

Finance Act, . Joint Commissioner

11 1994 Service Tax | 2016-17 96.86 CGST & CX
Mabharashtra
Value Added | MVAT Joint

12 Tax Act, 2002 | Assessment U110 25307 Commissioner.(Appeals)
Maharashtra i
el & Transitional Joint

13 . Credit of | 2017-18 31.16 2
Service  Tax SGST Commissioner.(Appeals)
Act, 2017
Maharashtra =
Gl & Transitional Joint

14 . Credit  of | 2017-18 | 29.21 meo
Service  Tax SGST Commissioner.(Appeals)
Act, 2017

(Note : The above litigations includes pending dispute of entities merged into the Company.)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution,
bank or government or dues to debenture holders.

The company has not raised any money via initial public offer or by way of further public
offer. However, the Company has taken loans from banks or financial institutions during
the year. The term loan outstanding were applied for the purpose for which they were
taken.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across
any instance of materialfraud on or by the Company by its officers or employees, noticed
or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

The Company being a Private Limited company, the provision of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act do not apply. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the standalone Ind ASfinancial statements as required by
the applicable Indian accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting




XV. According to the information and explanations provided to us,and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

XVi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

For S M Gupta& Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN No:310015E
Nt 2

NeenaRamgarhia
Place: Mumbai i Partner
Date:30™ November, 2021 Membership No: 067157

UDIN :22067157AAAAAAS5349



Annexure — B to Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report under other legal and regulatory requirements’ of the
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Runwal
Developers Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31%, 2021 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects. '

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or.improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

|
Opinion L :
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. d i

For S M Gupta& Co.
. Chartered Accountants

’A}\FRN No:310015E
@ :

o)
MUMBAI \

NeenaRamgarhia

Place: Mumbai ; - ; Partner

Date:30™ November, 2021
UDIN :22067157AAAAAA5349

Membership No: 067157



Notes
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3
Investment Property 4
Intangible Asset 5
Non Current Financial Assets
Investments ]
Loans 7
Others 8
Other Non Current Assets 9
Current assets
Inventories 10
Financial assets
Trade receivables 11
Cash and cash equivalents 12
Loans 13
Other 14
Other current assets 15
Total Assets
Equity and llabilities
Equity
Share capital 16
Other equity 17
Total Equity
Non-current llabilities:
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 18
Others 19
Deferred Tax Liability (net) 20
Provisions 21
Current liabilities:
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 22
Short Term Borrowings 23
Other financial liabilities 24
Other current liabilities 25
Provisions 26

Total equity and liabilitles

Runwal Developers Private Limited
Balance sheet as at 31st March 2021

As at
315t March 2021
INR

78,67,94,503
45,47,95,427
9,85,002

2,93,42,01,084
19,09,23,135
2,90,89,554
28,73,67,608

4,68,41,56,313

9,48,28,96,053

7,17,60,357
85,13,55,401
1,02,39,82,044
8,64,05,251
11,17,74,448

11,62,81,74,154

16,31,23,30,467

63,568,290
7,28,33,95,592

7,28,97,63,882

2,80,06,80,333

10,96,69,962
1,33,67,006

2,92,37,17,301

49,13,12,679
9,95,43,989
2,04,82,50,829
3,23,78,92,652

22,18,49,135

6,09,88,49,284

16,31,23,30,467

As at
31st March 2020
INR

81,53,40,221
46,40,49,746
13,456,145

3,05,90,11,982
19,16,59,035
2,08,77,719
60,72,73,477
5,15,96,58,325

13,88,20,31,759

9,26,80,056
14,95,85,112
1,28,88,51,500
7,56,04,295
11,63,46,528
15,60,50,99,251
20,76,47,57,576

63,68,290
6.76,82,40.898
6,77,46,09,188

4,48,56,62,089
52,90,30,668
8,95,52,266
96,72,340

511,39,17,363

58,56,24,012
49,97,62,821
5,63,21,95,760
1,62,34,16,267

53,52,32,165

8,87,62,31,025

20,76,47,57,576

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For S.M. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No 310015E i A
N

\
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Neena Ramgarhia

Partner

Membership No. 067157
Date - 30th November, 2021

Wb e -
¢t

For and on behalf of the board of Directors
For Runwal Developers Private Limited.

Mahesh lyer Pallavi Matkari
Director Director
DIN:01337787 DIN : 08054518

Date - 30th November, 2021




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2021
Note Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March, 2020
INR INR
Revenue from operations 27 6,37,50,47,152 12,62,50,45,919
Other income 28 46,62,04,593 25,73,55,070
TOTAL INCOME 6,84,12,51,745 12,88,24,00,989
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 29 1,37,87,10,229 82,39,94,463
Changes in inventories of finished goods (including 30 4,39,91,35,780 10,19,56,04,517
stock-in-trade) and work-in-progress ?
Employee benefits expenses 31 4,78,54,873 7,71,29,347
Finance costs 32 13,85,00,080 12,97,64,895
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 33 5,17,60,909 5,29,55,421
Other expenses 34 14,20,93,527 16,24,14,317
TOTAL EXPENSES 6,15,80,55,398 11,44,18,62,959
Profit before exceptional items and tax 68,31,96,347 1,44,05,38,030
Exceptional items
Profit before tax 68,31,96,347 1,44,05,38,030
Tax expenses
Current tax (22,06,00,000) (52,76,23,502)
MAT Credit utilized (3,95,37,705) (29,02,87,361)
Tax related to previous year (45,932) 92,162
Deferred tax credit/(charge) 3,77,24,130 7,09,34,883
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 46,07,36,840 69,36,54,212
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurment of actuarial gains and losses 23,89,603 9,77,990
Net {loss)/gain on FVTOCI equity Securities 7,03,32,373 7,32,55,344
(i} Income tax relating to items that will not be (1,83,04,121) (2,16,16,747)
reclassified to profit or loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 51,51,54,695 74,62,70,799 |
Earnings per equity share
Basic/Diluted (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 808B.94 1,171.85
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of Directors
For 5.M. Gupta & Co. i For Runwal Developers Private Limited. A
Chartered Accountants L 1) "~ .
Firm Regn. No 310015E Lk’\ i - m 7l
\ ! k}r \ EM {\./ -
\ - )\I o e
{ oM ; M
- g \ i
WUS 4 =
e Al -
Neena Ramgarhia Mahesh lyer Pallavi Matkari
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 067157 DIN : 01337787 DIN : 08054518
Date - 30th November, 2021 Date - 30th November, 2021




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the period ended 31st March 2021
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
Operating activities
|Profit before tax 68,31,96,347 1,44,05,38,030
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 5,17,60,509 5,29,55,421
Profit on sale of Fixed Asset (6,64,161) (90,000)
Profit on sale of Mutual Fund (4,70,630} (6,00,881)
Loss on sale of shares 3,84,60,750
Finance income (62,77,519) (57,09,326)
Finance costs (Considered in financing activities) 45,80,57,706 1,11,20,65,648
Non-Cash Finance Cost 36,29,034
Share of Profit from Partnership and AOPs (6,788) (3,87,050)
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back (44,74,06,951) (24,49,02,881)
Valuation of Mutual Fund d - (7,29,994)
Operating profit before working capital changes 73,81,88,912 2,39,52,28,751
Working capital adjustments
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 2,09,19,099 1,40,93,569
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 4,39,91,35,707 10,19,42,34,703
‘Increase)/decrease in other current and non current assets 30,55,65,157 85,19,99,933
JIncrease)/decrease in long term and short term loans and advances 26,56,05,357 18,73,59,570
{Increase)/decrease in current investments 3,32,46,841
Increase /(decrease) in trade payables, other current and non current liabilities and (2,65,74,33,772) (6,54,91,51,295)
provisions
{Increase)/decrease in current assets (44,39,02,154)
Changes due to working capital movements 2,33,37,91,547 4,28,78,81,167
Adjustments to reserves on account of merger 20,02,35,347
Cash Generated from Operations 3,07,19,80,459 6,88,33,45,265
|Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 13,86,139
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP) (1,43,21,707) (1,24,58,557)
Additions to property, plant and equipment on account of merger (4,04,987)
Additions to investment property on account of merger (30,78,05,142)
Additions to intangible Asset {1,96,972)
Movement in Non Current Investments 17,97,06,170 (2,07,57,62,044)
Interest received (finance income) 62,77,519 57,09,326
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities 17,30,48,122 (2,39,09,18,376)
(45,80,57,706) (1,11,20,65,648)
~ sayment of long term borrowings (2,08,52,00,588) (3,88,16,83,458)
ceeds from short term borrowings 49,87,30,730
Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities (2,54,32,58,293) (4,49,50,18,376)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 70,17,70,288 (25,91,486)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14,95,85,114 15,21,76,601
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 85,13,55,402 14,95,85,114
Notes:
a) There has not been any bonus issue of shares during the year.
b) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows'.
For $.M. Gupta & Co. N For Runwal Developers Private Limited.
Chartered Accountants \ ( /z'
Firm Regn. No 310015E _ ANV, WJ\
T N
}e} (/ b » W\
o [ \ ; | —_—
N\ \ : 2GS ) ]
Neena Ramgarhia Mahesh lyer Pallavi Matkari
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 067157 DIN : 01337787 DIN : 08054518
Date - 30th November, 2021 Date - 30th November, 2021
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements

1

iii

General Information

Runwal Developers Private Limited ("the Company") is incorporated under the Companies Act 1956. The company is engaged primarily in the business of
real estate construction, development and other related activities along with this the company is also into the business of leasing of mall, windmill power
generation and solar power generation.

The company is a private limited company incorporated in the year 1988 and domiciled in India having its registered office at Runwal and Omkar Esquare,
5th Flogr, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai - 400022,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements
The company's Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Indian Accounting
Standards ("IND AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 issued by the ministry of corporate affairs under sections
133 read with subsection (1) of section 210A of the Companies Act 1956. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by The Institute Of

Chartered Accountants of India are also applied except where compliance with other statutory Promulgations require a different treatrent.

All Applicable Ind AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively wherever required.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il|
(Divison I1) to the Companies Act, 2013.

i Current vs Non-Current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

The Company's narmal operating cycle in respect of operations relating to the construction of real estate projects may vary from project to project
depending upon the size of the project, type of development, project complexities and related approvals. Operating cycle for all completed projects is
based on 12 months period. Assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non - current based on their respective operating cycle.

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
= Held primarily for the purpose of trading
« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

» It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires the Company to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabllities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liability. The estimates and
assumption used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon evaluation of relevant fact and circumstances as of date of financial
statements. Difference between the actual and estimates are recognised in the year In which the revenue/expenses are known/materialised.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, demand deposit and short-term deposits, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost includes the purchase price and any directly attributable cost to bring the asset to working condition for its intended use.
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Subsequent costs are Included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and losss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Items of fixed assets that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable
value and are shown separately in the financial statements. Any expected loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

The company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the
total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, If appropriate,

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The useful life of the assets are
based on the useful lives as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives of assets specified in Schedule I to the Companies Act,
2013, are as follows:

Nature of the asset Useful life
Plant and equipment
Solar 25 years
Windmill 22 years
Vehicle 8 years
Furniture and Fittings 10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is de-recognized.

i Investment Property

Properties, including those under construction if any, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment property. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investrnent properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The estimated useful life of investment property is 60 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognision of property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
same period.

Intangible Assets and Amortization

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are
amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or.expense in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Nature of the asset Amortisation period
Computer software (ERP) 10 years
Other Than ERP 3 years

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, guoted market prices or other avalilable fair value indicators.




ix Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

11 Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value , in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement.

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

* Financial assets at fair value

* Financial assets at amortised cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment) unless the asset is
designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option

» Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to
sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realise its fair value changes).

» Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and Interast on the principal amount outstanding,

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from
the company’s statement of financial position) when the right to receive cash flows from the asset is transferred or expired.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the

following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11
and Ind A5 18 (referred to as ‘contractual revenue receivables’ in these illustrative financial statements)

&) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit guality of the instrument improves such that there
is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-
month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECLisa
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expects to recelve (i.e, all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

a) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
Instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

b) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ii} Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A
financial liability is measured at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it Is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.




Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are

* Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR

»

i

amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

iii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Construction materials and consumables

The construction materials and consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. The construction materials and consumables purchased
for construction work issued to the construction work in progress are treated as consumed.

Construction work in progress
The construction work in progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of land, development rights, rates and taxes,

construction costs, borrowing costs, other direct expenditure, allocated overheads and other incidental expenses.

Finished stock of completed projects (ready units
Finished stock of completed projects and stock in trade of units is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and it can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received/receivable net of rebate and taxes.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction
price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction
price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant
financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer, if any.

Revenue from real estate development Is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer.

Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer alongwith specified internal and external amenities, which have
been identified by the Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly interrelated/ interdependent.

The performance obligation in relation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project wark and transfer of control of

the asset to the customer.

Revenue from Solar Power
The company has installed Solar Power Plant at Osmanabad, Maharashtra. Revenue from the solar power plant is recognised when the electricty
generated reaches the point of delivery to MSEDCL and the control is transferred to MSEDCL.

Revenue from Wind Mill Power
The electricity generated by windmill is utilised for captive consumption at the company's Mall division situated at Ghatkopar, Mumbai.
The electricity generated from Windmill is sold to MSEDCL from the inception and the revenue for the same is recognised when the control is transferred.

Rental Income

Rental income is recognized on a straight-fine basis over the terms of the lease, except where escalation is in line with inflation and also except for
contingent rental income which is recognized when it arises and where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for expected inflationary costs.
Parking income and fit out rental income is recognized in statement of profit and loss on accrual basis.

Sale of development rights
Sale of development rights s recognized in the financial year in which the agreements of sale are executed, contral is transferred and there exists no
uncertainty in the ultimate collection of consideration from buyers.

Interest income
Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method,

Borrowing cost

Interest and specific borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are asset that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
are incurred.




xiii Retirement and other benefits to employees
a) Long-Term Employee Benefits
Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has Defined Benefit Plan for post-employment benefits in the form of Gratuity and is wholly unfunded. Liability for Defined Benefit Plan is
provided on the basis of valuation, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. The actuarial valuation method used by
independent actuary for measuring the liability is the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses on post-retirement defined benefit plans
arising during the year are recognized in other comprehensive income.

b) Short Term Benefits
Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss account of the year in which the related service is
rendered.

c) Termination benefits are recognised as an expense, as and when incurred
xiv Foreign currency translations

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Realised gains and losses on
settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rate, and the resultant exchange difference is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

xv Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date. The
arrangement is, or contains a lease if, fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Finance Lease

Leases where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability based on the implicit rate of return. The
finance charge is charged to the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalized.

If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease item, capitalized leased assets are depreciated over
the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset, the lease term and Schedule Il as per the Companies Act, 2013.

Operating Lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease rents under
operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis, except where escalation in rent is in line with expected general
inflation.

xvi Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the company’s earnings per share are the net profit for the
period after tax. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as
bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential shares.

xvii Accounting for taxes on Income

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions
of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments / appeals.

Current income tax relating to items directly recognised in equity is recognised in equity and not in statement of profit and loss. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit, which is equal to the excess of MAT (calculated in accordance with provisions of Section 115JB of the Income Tax
Act, 1961) over normal income-tax is recognised as an asset by crediting the staternent of profit and loss only when and to the extent there is conwincing
evidence that the Company will be able to avail the said credit against normal tax payable during the period of ten succeeding assessment years. Deferred
tax included MAT credit wherever applicable.




Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financail reporying purposes at each reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that suffiecient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax to be utlised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and |iabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the

liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax iterms are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current

income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The break-up of the major components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as at balance sheet date has been arrived at after setting off deferred tax
assets and liabilities where the Company have a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities and where such assets and liabilities relate to
taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

xviii Provision, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

xix

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be
measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

A contingent assets is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic
benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
an obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using
a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either: )

* In the principal market for the asset or liability; Or

= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair wvalue,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

+ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basls, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements

Note 6

Non Current Investments

Investment in equity instruments:

A. Subsidiary Companies [Carried at Cost)

Avalor Developers Pvt Ltd (10,000 shares of Rs 10 each)

B. Joint Venture Companies (Carried at Cost)
Rrmall Developers Pyt Ltd -Class A (19,90,000 shares of Rs 10 each)
Rmall Developers Pvt Ltd -Class B (47,142 shares of Rs 10 each)

C. Equity instruments of other companies (carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income)

Dhruva WollenMills Pvt Ltd (25,867 shares of Rs 10 each)

D. Associates (Carried at Cost)

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Ltd (8,00,400 shares of Rs : 100 each)

Investment in preference instruments:
R Retail Ventures Pvt Ltd (formerly Virgo Retails Ventures Pvt Ltd) - CCPS Series 2 0.01%

Preference shares (20,31,00,000 shares of Rs. 10 Each)

Investment in partnership firms (joint ventures)

Runwal Finance
Value Constructions 5RA

Investment in Mutual Fund
Birla Mutual Fund
{C.Y- NIL, P.Y - 25,104.81 Units)

Other investments - Association of Persons (AOP) (Joint ventures)

Runwal & Kunal Venture JV
Runwal Wonder Venture

Tenancy Rights

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR
1,00,000

1,99,00,000 1,99,00,000
2,63,89,567 2,63,99,567
32,94,42,112 25,91,09,739
17,20,86,000 17,20,86,000
2,03,10,00,000 2,03,10,00,000
75,57,301

33,22,73,384 32,88,42323
1,00,62,737
s (17,96,366)
17,25,15681

2,30,00,021 3,33,35,000
2,93,42,01,084 3,05,90,11,982

The company ("Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Ltd") ceases to be a subsidiary of Runwal Developers Private Limited (RDPL) from 26th September, 2019 as after the

furthur issue of shares, the percentage holding of RDPL has reduced from 71.87% to 34.26%

* Details about investment in partnership firm

A. Value Construction SRA
Total Capital of the firm - Value Construction SRA

Name of the Partners

1.Runwal Developers Private Limited
2.5ubhash Runwal

3.5angeeta Lalwani

4.Vikas Lalwani

Note 7
Non-current financial assets - Loans

Loans given to Tenants
Security Deposits#

# Security deposits are towards utility deposits, earnest money deposits and towards other deposits which are repayable on demand

Note 8
Non-current financial assets - Others

Fixed Deposits with banks

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
50,000 50,000
50,000 50,000
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
51% 51%
9% 9%
20% 20%
20% 20%
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
17,77,25,000 17,77,25,000
1,31,98,135 1,39,34,035
19!09,23,135 19,16,59,035

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
2,90,89,554 2,09,77,719
2,90,89,554 2,09,77,119



Note 9

Other Non-Current Assets

Advance income tax (net of provisions)
Advance against TOR

Other Non-Current Assets *

Others #

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
9,01,99,122 40,76,04,991
5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
13,41,68,486 13,66,68,486
1,30,00,000 1,30,00,000
28,73,67,608 60,72,73,477_

* Other Non current assets are towards purchase commitments, are non - interest bearing in nature and shall be setteled against future purchase of such assets

#In respect with the Other it is agreed with the counter party that the same will be adjusted against the land for which the amount is given,

Note 10
Inventories
Stock of TDR
Stock of Shops
Stock of Flats
Work-in-progress

Note 11

Trade receivables
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due for
payment
Other Trade receivables

Total trade receivables

Note 12
Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
In current accounts
In deposit accounts
Cash on hand

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Balances with banks:

—On current accounts

— Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cash on hand

Note 13

Current Financlal Assets - Loans

Security Deposit

Inter Corporate Deposit*

Fixed deposits with tenure more than 3 months but less than 12 months

* Inter corporate deposits paid are non interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Nate 14

Current Financial Assets - Others
Other Advances#

Accrued income

# Other Advances are repayable on demand

Note 15
Other Current Assets
Balances with Revenue Authorities

Loans and advances to employees *

Prepaid expenses

Advance against Land/TDR/Goods/Expenses/Others#
Advances recoverable in cash or kind

Interest Accrued but not due

*Loans and advances to employees are adjusted against future salaries.

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
7,18,38,278 7,18,38,278
13,69,886 13,69,886
5,75,83,77,954 11,51,42,65,462
3,65,13,09,935 2,2945,58,134
9,48,28,96,053 13,88,20,31,759
__ 3istMarch2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
1,43,60,322 2,38,89,770
5,74,00,635 6,87,90,286
7,17,60,957 9,26,80,056
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
83,67,70,119 13,60,34,864
97,49,554 85,00,000
48,35,728 50,50,248
85,13,55,401 14,95,85,112
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
83,67,70,119 13,60,34,864
97,49,554 85,00,000
48,35,728 50,50,248
85,13,55,401 14,95,85,112
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
4,53,49,622 6,46,88,217
96,74,92,422 1,19,63,49,922
1,11,40,000 2,78,13,361
1,02,39,82,044 1,28,88,51,500
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
8,05,35,691 6,99,76,131
—  5B69S6L 56,28,164_
8,64,05,251 7,56,04,295
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
7,01,389 7.,01,389
12,80,056 7,05,528
59,97,987 62,83,429
9,25,26,243 9,94,51,656
1,10,09,573 88,77,835
2,59,200 3,26,691
11,17,74,448 11,63,46,528

# Advances against land/ TDR/Goods/Expenses/Others are towards purchase commitments, are non - interest bearing in nature and shall be settled against future
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Note 17
Other equity
Capital Reserve

At 1 April 2019

Add: Adjustment to Reserves on amalgamation of RDPL, OEPL,

RPPL, VPDBPL and RBPL
At 31 March 2020
At 31st March 2021

Securities Premium

At 1 April 2019
At 31 March 2020
At 31st March 2021

General Reserve

At 1 April 2019
At 31 March 2020
At 31st March 2021

Retained earnings

At 1st April 2019

Add: Impact of transition to Ind AS 115

Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the year
MAT Credit adjustment

At 31 March 2020

Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the year
MAT Credit adjustment

At 31 March 2021

FVTOCI Reserve

At 1 April 2019

Add: Remeasurement gain/loss on acturial valuation
Add: Fair valuation through OCI

At 31 March 2020

Add: Remeasurement gain/loss on acturial valuation
Add: Fair valuation through OCI

At farch 2021

Total other equity
As at 1 April 2019

As at 31 March 2020
As at 31 March 2021

Nature and Purpose of Reserves
1) Capital Reserve

Capital reserve comprises of Rs.35,718 lakhs on account of merger in the year 2018-19 of Runwal Realty Private Limited ("RRPL"), Runwal Projects Private
Limited ("RPPL") and Runwal Township Private Limited ("RTPL")have merged into Runwal Developers Private Limited resulting into a negative capital reserv:
of Rs. 10,175 lakhs, negative capital reserve of 28,640 lakhs and a postive capital reserve of Rs. 3,097 lakhs.

Further, during the year Odeon Exhibitors Private Limited ("OEPL"), Veear Property Developers (Bombay) Private Limited ("VPDBPL"), Runwal Builders Priva
Limited (RBPL) and Runwal Properties Private Limited ("RPPL") have merged into Runwal Developers Private Limited resulting into a Positive Capital reserve

INR

(3,46,13,80,987)

9,18,21,687

(3,36,95,59,299)

(3,36,95,59,299)

INR

2,42,01,77,770

2,42,01,77,770

2,42,01,77,770

INR

2,25,00,000

2,25,00,000

2,25,00,000

INR

6,79,51,24,751

12,62,04,989
69,36,54,212
(7,04,07,917)

7,54,45,76,035

50,02,74,545
(3,95,37,705)

8,00,53,12,874

INR

9,79,29,806
6,93,199
5,19,23,388

15,05,46,393

17,88,140
5,26,29,715

20,49,64,247

5,87,43,51,340

6,76,82,40,898

7,28,33,95,592

Rs. 918 Lakhs, negative capital reserve of Rs.34 lakhs and a postive capital reserve of Rs.953 lakhs.




2) General reserve
General reserve has been created on account of the scheme of amalgamation with Subodh Construction Private limited as on 31st March 2007.

3) Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings are the profit that the company (including all merged entities) has earned till date, less any dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders.

4) Securities Premium

On account of merger of RRPL and RPPL being accounted for using the pooling of interest method, the securities premium of the respective companies as
appearing on the appointed date of merger is merged into RDPL's reserves.

5) FVTOCI Reserve

FVTOCI reserve includes the fair value gain or loss of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income as p
Ind AS 108.
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Note 18
Non-current financial llabilities- Borrawings
Secured:
Term Loans From Banks - Secured
From Others
7% Redeemable Preference shares*
0.01% Redeemable Preference shares#
Loan from related party

31st March 2021

31 March 2020

INR

INR

1,35,17,66,504

2,79,45,88,792

1,26,85,91,829 1,68,37,13,297
64,90,000 64,90,000
17,38,32,000
8,70,000
2,80,06,80,333 4,48,56,62,089
2,80,06,80,333 4,48,56,62,089
T

* The company has issued 6,49,000 7% Reedemable Non - cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each in consideration of amalgamation of RTPL, RPPL and RRPL with RDPL The RPS shall be
redeemable at par at the option of Transferee Company anytime after five (5) years but before 20 years from the date of allotment.

# The company has issued 1,73,83,200 0.01% Reedemable Non - cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each in consideration of amalgamation of Runwal Builders Private Limited ('RBPL'), Runwal
Properties Private Limited ('RPPL') , Veear Property Developers (Bombay) Private Limited ('VPDBPL') and Odeon Exhibitors Private Limited ('OEPL') with RDPL. The RPS shall be redeemable at par at
the option of Transferee Company anytime after five (5) years but before 20 years from the date of allotment.

A Secured Loans from Banks:
Sr. |Loan from Secured against/ Guarantee given Terms of Repayment
No
1|Bank of Baroda ( LRD 28 Crs) Secured by lease rentals of Rmall Mulund. Monthly EM | of Rs.54,76,200 till Jan 2024,

last EMI on 29-2-24 of Rs.59,60,248

)

benx of Baroda (LRD 40.22Crs)

Secured by lease rentals of Rmall Mulund.

Monthly EMI of Rs.35,47,812 till Dec 2021,
Jan 2022 to Jun 2023- Rs, 44,99,770/-

Jul 2023 to Now 2025- Rs. 1,19,31,240/-
last EMI on 31-12-25 of Rs.3,91,90,025.03/-

3|ICICI Bank ( car loan) NA Equal manthly installments of Rs 2,56,064
for 60 months upto October 2021
4/ICICI Bank ( car loan) NA Equal monthly installments of Rs 1,46,490

for 60 months upto December 2025,

ul

Union Bank of India

Solar Power Plant Project secured by hypothecation of
10MW Solar Power Plant Plant & Machinery and
mortgage of underlying land.

2 year moratorium period from March 2015
to February 2017. Thereafter, in 120
monthly installments of Rs. 30.47 lakhs
beginning from March 2017 and ending in
Feb 2027.

6| Term loan for Construction from ICICI Bank [Nirvana)

The loan is secured by exclusive charge by way of
registered mortgage on -i) propertyii) scheduled
receivables and all insurance proceeds both present and
futureiil) security of all rights, title, interest, claims,
benefits, demands under all project documents both
present and futureiv) escrow account alongwith all
monies credited/deposited therein and all investments in
respect thereof

Repayable in 24 monthly instaliments
commencing from 15th December, 2021.

7| Term Loan from Standard Chartered Bank

The facility , all interest thereon, costs, charges, expenses
and all other monies in respect thereof shall be secured
by: 1) Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
the Project Elegante along with the underlying Land. 2)
Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the
scheduled recieveables & Escrow account of the Project,
all monies credited / deposited therein and all
investments in respect thereof.

Repayable in 14 quarterly instalments of
Rs.21.43 cr from Feb'20

8|Bank of Baroda (LRD 29.50 Crs)

Term loan under future rent receivable scheme of Bank of
Baroda , Secured by Agreement of assignment of rent
receivables and equitable mortgage of some commercial
shops situated in R-Odeon Mall, Ghatkapar East,
admeasuring a leasable area of 53,505 sq.ft.

Monthly EM| of Rs47,65,000 till Jan 2024,
last EMI on 29-2-24 of Rs.25,37,662




wn

Bank of Baroda (LRD 14.84 Crs)

Term loan under future rent receivable scheme of Bank of
Baroda, Secured by Agreement of assignment of rent
receivables and equitable mortgage of some commercial
shops situated at R-Odeon Mall, Ghatkopar East,
admeasuring a leasable area of 53,505 sq.ft.

Monthly EMI of Rs.12,91,600 till Jun 2022,
'Jul 2022 to Dec 2023- Rs. 18,11,000/-

Jan 2024 to May 2026- Rs. 44,68,375/-
last EMI on 30-6-26 of Rs.1,10,75,063/-

B.. Secured Loans from Others:

Sr. |Loan taken from

Secured agal ra Vel

Terms of Repayment

I
¥

Line of Credit from Aditya Birla Finance Ltd

Life Insurance policy of Mr. Sandeep Runwal & Mr.
Subodh Runwal, premium thereof invested in units of
unencumbered securities

|Interest is paid monthly

2 |Term Loan from Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

1) Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
unsold units in R-Anthurium 2) Exclusive charge by way
of registered mortgage on unsold units in R-Square upto
7th Floor  3) Exclusive charge by way of registered
mortgage on unsold units in R-Square from Sth to 14th
Floors. 3) Personal Guarantee of Sandeep Runwal to the
tune of Rs. 75 crores 4) DSRA Equivalent to 3 month's
interest on oustanding amount to be maintained in the
form of FD with Lien marked to TCHFL during the
currency of loan.

1) 29 equal monthly installments of Rs. 5.33
crores & last montly installment of Rs: 5.43
crores 2) 30 monthly installments of 2.5 crs

3 |Term loan from Aditya Birla Housing Finance Ltd

Unsold inventory of "The Residence" & "The Reserve"
Projects

Repayable in 24 monthly installments
commencing from 1st October, 2023,

=]

_ _.nand loan from Aditya Birla Finance Ltd

Aditya Birla Financial Ltd sanctioned line of credit against
insurance palicies of Rs.27 Crores against unencumbered
and tradable securities.

Validity of facility : One year from the date
of first disbursement from March 2018 and
such option to renew at the sole discretion
of ABFL based on written request received

from borrower

This changes in liabilities schedule includes movements for current as well as non - current portion of term loans.

Note 13
Non-current financial liabilities - Others
Advances - Others

Note 20
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred Tax Asset / (Liabilities)
Deferred Tax on Actuarial Gain Losses (OCI)

Deferred Tax on Investments carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

MAT Credit entitlement

M-ta 21
Current Provisions
\u; Provision for gratuity
{b) Provision for leave encashment

Note 22

Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Retention Money

For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 40
For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to Note 43,

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
% 52,90,30,668
- 52,90,30,668
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
{9,13,65,841) (9,48,54,926)
(6,01,463) {7,20,193)
{1,77,02,658) (3.35,14,852)
- 3,95,37,704
10,96,69,962 8,95,52,266
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
82,79,475 96,72,340
50,87,531
1,33,67,006 96!?2!340
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
3,23,17,186 2,87,60,582
31,66,87,537 38,22,05,452
14,23,07,956 17,46,57,978
49,13,12,679

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 *

58,56,24,012




Note 23
Short Term Borrowings
Secured Bank Overdraft*

* Working capital loan from banks of Rs. 9.10 crs Is secured against all piece & parcel of land including structures both present and future, excluding rehab building.

Warking capital loan from banks of Rs. 0.84 crs is secured against unsold inventory and sales reclevable from unsold inventory.

Note 24
Other current financial liabilities

Current maturities of long-term borrowings

Indian Rupee loan from banks #
From Others?

Inter Corporate Deposit®

Other payable

Interest Payable on Borrowings
Consideration Payable

Note 25

Other current liabilities
Advances - Others

Statutory Remittances

Advance from customers
Sundry Deposits from customers

Note 26 !

Current Provisions

Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity
leave encashment

Provision for CSR

Provision for Tax

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
9,95,43,989 49,97,62,821
9,95,43,989 49,97,62,821
31st March 2021 31March 2020
INR INR
38,49,85,348 58,45,63,480
40,03,57,105 2,03,61,69,649
57,15,14,325
1,24,51,40,622 2,22,67,49,049
1,77,67,753 3,93,67,257
17,38,32,000
2,04,82,50,829 5,63,21,95,760
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
20,26,72,642
4,75,61,243 7,59,18,046
2,55,42,82,830 73,90,98,593
43,33,75,937 80,8399,628
3,23,78,92,651 1,62,34,16,267
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
6,26,640 1,33,247
6,22,495 =
74,75,416
22,06,00,000 52,76,23,502
22,18,49,135 53,52,32,165
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Note 27
Revenue from operations

Sale of Flats

Income from Rent
Business Support Service
Sale of Solar power

Sale of Wind Power

Other Operating Revenue

Note 28
Other income

Finance Income
Interest income on fixed deposits
Interest Income on Income Tax Refund
Interest Income on Other Deposits
Interest income on ICD

Profit / {Loss) on sale of tangible fixed assets

Income from sub letting

Profit / (Loss) on sale of Mutual Fund

Share of profit from Firm

Share of profit from AOP

Miscellaneous income

Fair Value gain Mutual Fund (FVTPL)

Sundry Balances Written Back

Note 29

Cost of construction and development expenses

Construction Material and Other Expenses

Note 30

Changes in inventories of finished goods (including stock-in-trade) and work-in-progress

Opening Stock
Finished Goods
wip

Closing Stock
Finished Goods
wip

31st March 2021

31 March 2020

INR INR
6,17,34,20,920 12,28,08,83,944
5,58,75,885 14,31,21,551
3,60,00,000 60,00,000
2,98,98,277 6,11,06,879
46,81,793 59,71,910
6,29,98,76,875 12,49,70,84,284
7,51,70,277 12,79,61,635

6,37,50,47,152 12,62,50,45,919

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR

31,20,649 57,09,326

5,45,276 27,592

21,18,455 22,88,711
4,93,140

6,64,161 50,000

18,00,000

4,70,630 6,00,881

6,788 2,298

- 3,84,752

1,13,78,543 8,18,635

. 7,29,994

44,74,06,951 24,49,02,881

46,62,04,593 25,73,55,070

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
1,37,87,10,229 82,39,94,463

1,37,87,10,229 82,39,94,463

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
11,58,74,73,626 7,33,29,80,878
2,29,45,58,207 16,74,46,55,471
(5,83,15,86,118) (11,58,74,73,626)
(3,65,13,09,935) (2,29,45,58,207)

4,39,91,35,780 10,19,56,04,517



Note 31
Employee benefits expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus
Gratuity expense
Staff welfare expense

Note 32
Finance costs

Interest

- On fixed period loan

- Dividend on redeemable Preference Shares
- Others

Finance charges

Total interest expense

Less Capitalised in WIP

Total finance cost

Note 33

Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of tangible assets
Depreciation of investment property
Depreciation of intangible assets

Note 34
Other expenses
Power and fuel
Repairs and maintenance
Building
Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Legal and professional fees
Payment to auditor
For Audit Fee
For Tax Audit Fees
Licence Renewal Fees
Advertising and sales promotion
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
Brokerage Commission
Mall Management Expenses
Wind Mill Expenses
Solar Power Plant Expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Motor Car Expenses
General administration costs
Sundry Balances w/off
Loss on sale of shares

Payments to the auditor:

As auditor*
Audit fee
Tax audit fee

* No payments have been made to Auditors in any other capacity.

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
4,59,88,300 7,55,42,744
7,13,536 6,84,185
11,53,038 9,02,418

4,78,54,873

7,71,29,347

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
45,50,52,370 1,10,86,37,886
4,61,348 1,84,063
64,70,411 36,29,034
25,43,987 32,43,700
46,45,28,117 1,11,56,94,683
(32,60,28,037) (98,59,29,788)
138500080 __ 12,97,64,895
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
4,21,45,446 4,33,10,839
92,54,320 92,54,320
3,61,143 3,890,262
5,17,60,909 5,29,55,421

5,17,60,909

5,29,55,421

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
1,25,60,976 1,71,58,261
12,71,823 5,26,494
57,92,787 34,69,042
22,13,594 16,18,188
1,55,11,987 1,15,34,958
60,94,941 80,28,722
17,10,000 15,58,500
1,590,000 1,90,000
60,116 9,59,588
19,83,592 46,26,834
1,73,14,143
1,08,68,836 -
59,57,472 1,58,60,974
32,55,640 36,08,776
2,35,85,410 1,20,05,004
3,15,60,152 4,24,47,740
1,43,583 3,58,037
- 2,448
20,18,476
3,84,60,750

14,20,93,527

17,10,000
1,90,000

16,24,14,317

15,58,500
1,90,000

19,00,000

17,48,500
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Note 35

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31st March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
Profit attributable to equity holders:
Continuing operations 51,51,54,695 74,62,70,799
Profit attributable to equity holders for basic/ diluted earnings: 51,51,54,695 74,62,70,799
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS* 6,36,829 6,36,829
Basic/ Diluted EPS 808.94 1,171.85

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury share transactions during the year. There have been no other
transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

Note 36
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company's Standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates
an¢ ~<sociated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the financial
st ants were prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the year in which the
estimates are revised and in any future year affected.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following Judgements, estimates and assumptions which have significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on the assumptions about the risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations, based on the company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forwa rd looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. ;

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits):

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of govern— -t
securities in currencies consistent with ' Jrrencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The rtality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 37.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation Is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm'’s length, for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from
the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's
performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected
future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using appropriate valuation techniques. The inputs for these valuations are taken from observable sources where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of various Inputs including liquidity risk, credit risk , wolatility etc. Changes in
assumptions/judgements about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financlal

Note 37
Employee Benefits

(a) Defined Benefit Plans

a. Gratuity

Gratulty is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement, death, permanent disablement and resignation In terms of the provision of the
Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, or Company's Scheme whichever is more beneficial, Benefits would be paid at the time of the separation based on the
respective Schemes.

£nll

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as

ity (Funded)
31 st March 2021 31 st March 2020
INR INR
| Change In present value of defined benefit obligation during the year
1. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 98,05,587 82,26,055
2. Interest cost 6,70,702 6,38,342
3, Current service cost 33,62,926 29,44,948
4. Past service cost
5. Uability transferred InfAcquisitions 3,44,192
6. Liabllity Transferred cut / Dlvestment (15,46,322)
7. Benefits paid directly by employer (13,41,367) (10,25,768)
8, Benefits paid
9. Actuarial changes arising from ch ind aphic pti (7,38,683)
10. Actuarial ck arising from ct in financial assumptions (11,95,349) 11,58,061
11, Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments (4,51,571) {21,36,051)
12. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 89,06,115 98,05,587
11 Change In fair value of plan assets during the year
1. Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year -
2. Interest Income -
3. Contributions pald by the employer -
4. Benefits paid from the fund =
5. Assets transferred out / divestments -
6. Return on plan assets excluding interest income -
7. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -
1l Net asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
1. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year {83,06,115) (98,05,587)
2. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year
3. Amount recognised In the balance sheet (89,08,115) (98,05,587)
4. Net (liability)/ asset- Current (89,06,115) (98,05,587)
Net (liability)/ asset- Non-current
w T ised in the of profit and loss for the year
1. Current service cost 33,62,926 29,44,548
2. Interest cost on benefit obligation (Net) 6,70,702 6,38,342
3. Total expenses included in employee benefits expense 40,33,628 35,83,290
V Recognised in other comprehensive i for the year
1. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions (7,38,683) -
2. Actuarial changes arising from changes In financial assumptions (11,99,349) (9,77,990)
3. Actuarlal changes arising from changes |n experlence adjustments (4,51,571) -
4. Return on plan assets excluding interest income -
. gnised In other comprehensive income (9,77,990)
VI Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
1. Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting perlod) £,26,640 1,27,801
2. 2nd Followlng Year 6,46,244 2,01,312
3. 3rd Following Year 7,57,444 1,80,827
4. 4th Following year 8,34,884 6,76,071
5. 5th Following year 9,54,269 2,38,858
6. Sum of years 6th to 10 years = 44,69,269 31,31,318
7. 5um of 11 years and above 73,08,041 2,61,65,274
VIl Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:
1. Increase/{decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year
(1) One percentage polnt increase in discount rate (5,91,540) (12,49,599)
{il) One percentage point decrease In discount rate 6,69,821 15,14,916
(i) One percentage point increase in rate of salary Increase 6,66,954 14,81,912
(i) One percentage polnt decrease in rate of salary Increase (5,99,957) (12,47,901)
(1) One p ge point| in employ rate (74,475) (2,41,767)
(ii) One percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate 73,526 2,67,048
(i) One percentage point increase in Medical Inflation rate
{il) One percentage point d In Medical Infl rate
2, Senstivity Analysis Method
The sensitivity analysls have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other ptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

T |

Furtt L in E ting the above y analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been 1 using the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the proj 1 benefit obligation as ised in the

aray -

There was no change in the methods and lons used In p the sensltivity analysis from prior years,




VIIl The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total
Insurer managed funds

IX Actuarial assumptions
1. Discount rate
2. Salary escalation

3. Mortality rate during employment
4. Mortality post retirement rate

5. Rate of Employee Turnover

Notes :

Gratuity (Funded
31 st March 2021 31 st March 2020
INR INR
6.84% 7.76%
8% 8%

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality |{2006-08)

For Service 4 years and
below 10%p.a.

For Service 5 years and
above 2% p.a

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)

NA,
For Service 4 years and

below 10%p.a.
For Service 5 years and
above 2% p.a

(i} The actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31st March, 2021. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit

Method.

(i) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the

abligations.

(iii} The salary escalation rate |s arrived after taking into consideration the seniority, the promotion and other relevant factors, such as, demand and

supply in employment market.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial stat

Note 38
Commitments and contingencies
a. Leases

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The company does not have any lease commitments where it acts as a lessee.

b. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:
The company does not have any contracts remaining to be executed on capital account which it has not provided for.

Other Commitments:
There are no other commitments.

c. Contingent liabilities

Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2019
Arising during the year

Utilised

Unead amounts reversed

4 1 Amount as at 31 March 2020

Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2020
Arising during the year

Utilised

Unused amounts reversed

Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2021

Income tax Excise and service Salés Tak deriand Goods and Total

demand tax demand Services Tax #i

INR INR INR INR INR
1,01,15,55,222 4,06,92,832 3,95,546 1,05,26,43,60
49,840 - 28,086,576 28,5641
2,09,81,372 (2,52,33,267) {3,95,546) (46,4744
1,03,25,86,434 1,54,59,565 28,06,576 - 1,05,08,52,57!
1,03,25,86,434 1,54,59,565 28,06,576 1,05,08,52,57!
3,90,52,670 60,36,813 3,90,52,67!
3,94,54,627 (45,02,471) 3,49,52,15
1,03,21,84,477 1,08,57,094 28,06,576 60,36,813 1,12,48,57,40:

A) The Company has issued an irrecoverable and unconditional corporate guarantee in respect of loan taken by R Mall Developers Private Limited jointly by the Company and RECOSIA Ghatkopar PTE Ltc
and the outstanding amount along with accured interest as on 31st March 2021 Rs: 27854.56lacs.

Nature of Provision

The sales tax department of the government of Maharashtra has ¢

2014 and determined the VAT and interest liability. However in compliance with Circular 12T of 2014, the same stands deferred.

1ts w.r.t. the returned filed by the company on the sale of flats to the customers upto the period March

Similarly, Service tax notice is also issued by Commissioner of Service tax and demand is raised for short payment of service tax on renting of immovable property at Rmall Mulund and also for FY 2011-1
and 2012-13 showing the payment wrongly under as input tax credit availed instead of showing it as Service tax paid and for few of them an appeal is also filed in CESTAT.

Note 39
Segment Reporting

The company identifies the following activities as independent segments :

i) Real estate business
ii) Lease rentals
iii) Electricity generation




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial

MNote 40
Related party Disclosre
A) List of related parties
(i} Subsidiary
Avalor Developers Private Limited

{il}  Associate
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited (subsidiary upto 26.09.2019)

(iii)  Hey Management Personnel:
Kishorkumar Jain
Pallavi Matkari
Sanjay Daga
Mahesh lyer (w.e.f 01.03.21)

(iv)  Relative of KMP
Babita Daga

(v}  Entities where KMPs have significant influence
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited
Runwal Farms Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limited,
Avalor Retall Private Limited
Galleria Retail Private Limited.
Runwal Constructions

(vi)  Joint Venture
R Mall Developers Private Limited
R Retail Ventures Retail Pvt. Ltd.

(vii) Partnership Firm fAOP
Runwal Finance
Value Construction SRA
Runwal and Kunal Venture
Runwal Wonder Venture

B) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

31 March 2021
Sr.
Nature of transaction / relationship
No. INR

1 Sale/Purchase of Material
sale
Runwal Constructions 3,58,972
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited 99,360
Horizon Projects Private Limited 25,25,600
R retail Ventures pvt Ltd 18,439,200
Histyle Retail Private Limited. 3,57,402
Purchase
Dhruva Woolen Mills Pyt Ltd =
Runwal Constructions 3,23,977
Herizon Projects Pyt Ltd 1,81,709

2 Income from sub-letting
R retail Ventures pvt Ltd 32,90,279

3  Reimbursement of expenses
R Retail Ventures Pyt Ltd 88,500
R Mall Developers Pyt Ltd

4 Advance received against material supply
Histyle Retall Pyt Ltd 2,00,00,000
R Retail Ventures Pvt Ltd - SO

Repayment of Advance

Histyle Retail Pvt Ltd 3,00,00,000
R Retail Ventures Pvt Ltd - SD 8,82,50,000

5  Sale of Electricity
R Mall Developers Private Limited 4,78,98,277

6  Business Facility Services
R Mall Developers Private Limited 68,90,000

R Retail Ventures Private Limited

3,00,00,000

31 March 2020

INR

6,64,259
41,96,264
83,95,229

10,147
2,45,890
1,47,200

18,00,000

1,00,000
1,00,000

1,00,00,000
2,82,50,000

6,11,06,87%

69,650,000



1

tel

16

Maintainance service given
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Investment in Patnership firm/AQP
Runwal Kunal Venture
Runwal Wonder Venture
Runwal Finance
Value Construction SRA

Share of Profit / Loss from AOP/Firm
Runwal Finance
Value Constructions SRA
Runwal & Kunal Venture

Security deposit given
Given
Horizon Projects Pvt, Ltd.

Repaid
Horizon Projects Pvt. Ltd.

Security deposit taken

Repaid
Runwal Constructions

Intercarporate Deposits Received
Taken
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited

Repaid
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited

Intercorporate Deposits Given
Given
Herizon Projects Private Limited
R Retail Ventures Private Limited (Formerly VRVPL)
Avalor Developers Private Limited ©

Repaid

Horizon Projects Private Limited

R Retail Ventures Private Limitad {(Formerly VRVPL)
Avalor Developers Private Limited ©

Investment in Equity shares
Avaler Developers Private Limited ©

Investment in Preference shares
R Retail Ventures Pvt Ltd

Amount received from relative of director
Babita Daga

Amount repald to relative of director
Babita Daga

Directors Remuneration
Mr Sanjay Daga
Mr Mahesh lyer

Amount due to / from related parties

Inter Corporate Deposit
Given
Horizon Projects Private Limited
R Retail Ventures Private Limited (Formerly VRVPL}
Avalor Developers Private Limited ©

Received
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Security Deposit
Given
Horizon Projects Pyt, Ltd.

Investment in Joint Venture
Runwal Finance
Runwal Wonder Venture
Value Construction SRA
Runwal Kunal Venture

Investment in Equity Shares
Avalor Developers Private Limited
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited

19,87,612

17,96,366
(10,63,70,965)
(9,72,01,205)
34,31,061

5,727
1,061

31,65,00,000

20,23,133

84,03,00,000

1,37,68,14,325

81,40,00,000
1,00,00,000
16,00,00,000

76,05,07,500
5,58,50,000
8,00,00,000

1,00,000

1,50,00,000

61,96,140
7,16,785

31 March 2021

21,40,995

(4,65,248)

14,00,000
30,41,51,408

62,24,472

2,826
(528)
3,84,752

20,00,00,000

8,84,00,000

66,78,00,000
22,75,00,000

54,97,85,675
44,60,00,000

72,91,00,000
16,43,50,000

90,71,00,000
12,51,00,000

2,03,10,00,000

1,50,00,000

1,11,78,624

INR

69,99,92,500

8,00,00,000

16,56,00,000

(8,96,43,903)
6,61,44,716
33,22,73,384

1,00,000
17,20,86,000

31 March 2020
INR

64,65,00,000
4,58,50,000

53,65,14,325

48,21,00,000

75,57,301

17,25,15,681

32,88,42,323
(17,96,366)

17,20,86,000



R Mall Developers Private Limited
Dhruva Wollen Mills Private Limited

4,62,99,567
18,58,54,355

4,62,99,567
18,58,54,355

S5 Investment in Preference Shares
R Retail Ventures Pyt Ltd 2,03,10,00,000 2,03,10,00,000
6 Sale of Electricity
R Mall Developers Private Limited 1,54,54,800
7  Sundry Debtors
Runwal Constructions 3,589,211 2,18,835
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited - 15,79,585
Harizon Projects Private Limited 76,15,496 1,13,13,816
R Mall Developers Pyt Ltd (1,04,10,105) 69,60,000
Ariane Orgachem Pvt Ltd 9,96,964 21,04,707
Histyle Retall Pvt Ltd {1,00,00,000)
R Retafl Ventures Pyt Ltd - 50 (8,82,50,000)
8  Sundry Creditors
Dhruva Woelen Mills Pvt Ltd - 10,147
Runwal Constructions 3,34,806 20,97,909
Harizon Projects Pvt Ltd 2,87,828 1,065,119
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Comp of key | of the C INR INR
Nature of transaction / relationship
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment pension and medical benefits -
Other long term benefits -
Termination benefits -
Share based payments -
Total compensation paid to key management personnel
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length i This is undertaken each financial year through

examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in
cash.




6ZV'EL'ER'09'E 6ZV'EL'ER09'E B30l

ra'zL'ar'or TY9'TL9T'0T sajued pajejas Wolj SAIBUAPY
PEG'8Y'68'99'T PE6'8F'68'99'T $J3YI0 WoJy sueo
ESBTSLI'EL'T ESB'TSL9'EL'T Sjueg WoJlj sueo wia)

sSupmolioq pue sueo| Sueaq-1sa1aiu|
3500 pasipowe je sailjiqel| [elueuly

ZIT'ZV'h6'ZE TIT'IV'V6'ZE 18304
ZIT'ZY'v6'2ZE ZIT'ZY'Pe'ZE - (Tdwma) wawnnsul Aunba u) Juawisanu]
s50] Jo 3401d YSNOIY) IN|BA J1E) 3B SIDSSE |[BIIUBLIY
STZ'9E'6L'99'C STZ'9E'6L'99'T [el0L
7L6'85°/¥'09'C 7L6'85'/¥'09'7 GUEIMTEL
801'6L'66'Y 801'6L'66'F susodag paxid
SET'86'TE'T SET'86'TE'T {3uasina-uou) ysodap Ayindas
1500 PasUOWE 18 SI9SSE [Bjaueuly
] Zena] HEE] TZ0CE0IE
e sy
anjen ney Junowe
Sukiney siejnajued

TZOZ 'Y2IBA TE 18 SY

E1ED 133YJEW 3|GRAIDSTO U0 PasEq 10U 3Je JBY] N|EA JIB} PapI0daJ 3yl U 12a)s Juedyjudis e aAey Jeyl sanduj asn yaIym sanbjuydal i€ |aAa]
Appadipul Jo A2aJip JaYN3 ‘9|qeAISSGO 3uE 3N|BA JIE) PAPI0D3L 3UI UD 19342 Juedijudis e aAey yoiym sndui {|B yaiym 1o} sanbiuydal Jaylo 7 [2as]
saijjiqe|| JO 51355. |E3j3UapI JO} S}3yiew aaiDe uj saad (paisnipeun) pajonb :T [ana]

:anbiuysal uopenjea Aq sjuswniisul [BIDUBUY JO anjea Jiey 3y Sujsojasip pue Sulujwialap Joj Ayaselaly Suimojjo) 2yl sasn Auedwod ayL

‘SJUBLUMISUI B53Y] JO SB1ILINJBW WIal-1oys ayl o) anp Aj28se| sjunowe

Buiduies siay) sewixosdde suonNISUL [EDUBUY JBYI0 PUB S{UEQ WOJ SUBO] WIS LOYS ‘Sani|iqel] JuaLind Jaylo ‘sajqeded apes] ‘sa|qeAI3dal Wd) LIoYS J3Y3I0 pue apes) ‘s)isodap Wisl-Hoys pue Ysed Jo 3n|ea Jied
'8]es uopepinbi| Jo padJoj e uj Ueyl Jaylo ‘ssiuied Suljjim USAMIBG UOIIIEBSUBI] JUALIND B Uj PASUBLIXS 3G PINOI JUSINIISUI 3YI YIYm I8 JUNOLIE 31 18 PapN|oul 248 SaiMjiqel| pue S1asse |euBUY U3 JO San|ea Jjej ayL
2Jnsojasiq sanjen Jied

T 210N

SJUBW3}E)S [BIJUBLY) SUD|EPUER]S 0} S310N
PaWIr] 33BAld siadojanag [emuny




"pua Jeah yoea je aleys Jad anjeA }OOQ BY3 UO Paseq PRI 3IBAU S||IIN US[IOOAM BANIYQ JO SJuawnsul Anba ul JUaLWIS3AU] JO JUNOLWE Byl PaUIWISIap sey Juawaeusw ay|

‘puewsap uo 3jgeAedas ase awes ayj se Junowe Suiksied 53 sajewixosdde sysodap A3unaas 1o sanjen Jiej ayL

*SIUBLINJISUL 35313 JO SBlINIeW WUB3-Uoys ay) 0} anp AjaBse syunowe JujAied
J1eyy ajewixosdde sjasse/saliljige)| Juaund Jaylo pue sajgeded apes) ‘sysodap ajelodiod Js1u| ‘sajgeAlBdal BPEIL ‘SBIPIBAD SURD|/SISodap WIa) LoYs ‘sueo] ‘siuajeainba ysed pue ysed 1eyl passasse Juswageuew ay]

'SJUBWAINSE3W 3N|BA J[B} 7 [2AS] PUE T [9A37] UB3MIBQ SI3JSUBI] OU B1am 318yl ‘ TZOT Y2JBeW TE PUB 0Z0Z YieW T€ Suipua pouad Suiuodas syl Suung

LY0'60'ST'v0'6 L0'60'ST V0’6 1e30)
N = sajued palejal wolj ysodag Ayundas
SES'Z6'LL'L9 SES'TE'LLLY sajued palejal Woly SIIBUADY
752'e9'TT'08'E 752'E9'TT'0R'E SJ3Y10 WoJj SURO]
092'€5'v'95'Yy 092'€S'vZ'9s'y Sjueg WoJj sueo wuaj
sSuimouiog pue sueo| Jueag-3saiaiuy|
1502 Pas|UIOWE I S313|jIqel| |elaueuld
|eloL
GEL'GD'T6'ST G6EL'G0'T6'ST

BEL'B0'T6'ST 6£L'60'T6'SE (1dWma) 3uawnisul Ayinba uj Juawisasu|
ssoj Jo Jjoid ySnoiy anjen Jie) 1e s1asse jelIuBUlY

8SE'LZ'TL (8T 8SE'LZ'TIT48'C
EVZ'70'66'6L' EVT'T0'66'6LT S]UBWISaAU|
080'T6'2L'S 080'T6'2L'S sysodag paxi4
SEO'PE'GE'T SEO'VE'BE'T {3uauns-uou) ysodap Aundag
1503 PasiMUOWE I8 513SSE [RIaueul]

€ [2ne] TP T|2nen 0ZOZ'E0'TE

je sy

an|en Jie4 Junowe
Suikuzen signouey
0Z0Z ‘Y218l TE 18 SV

palwr] 31eAlld siadojanag [emuny




"0707 Y2JBIN TE PUB TZOZ YoJen T€ papua siead ayl Suunp [ended SuiSeuew Joj sassanoud Jo sapijod ‘saAnnalqo ayy ul apew aiam safueyd oN

‘poued Juann ayl ul Supmoiiog pue sueo| Supieaq
-153193u1 Aue JO SJUBUIAOD [BIJUBUL BY1 Ul S3YDBRIG OU UBBQ BABY 213y 'SBUIMOLIOG pue SUED| [[ed Aja1eIpaww) 01 jueq ay3 Jwad pjnom SIUBURAOD [BIDUBLL ay) Suaaww u) saydealg "siuswalnnbal a1nonas [eyded
auyap jey} sduimoLiog pue sueo| Bulesq-152193ul 8Y3 0 PAYILEIIE STUBLBAOD |BIDUBLY S}93W 3 JBY) 34N5Ua 01 swie ‘sFuiyy Jay3o Isduowe quawafeuew [eyded s, Auedwo) ayl ‘aa1d3go [[BI2A0 SIY3 2A3]YDE 01 13pI0 U|

%09 %BE oljes Suean
T19'16'69'L9T EE0V8TL LLTT ) 1q3p 18U pue jende)
868'0V'78'9L'9 T6S'SE'EERT'L |endes |eloL
067'89'E9 062'89'€9 Aunbg
vZv'Z8'ce'86'6 TrH'88'88'8b'y 192p 19N
ZIT'SR'SE'PT TOF'SS'EL 58 (T 210N) s53uajeAINba Ysed pue ysed :ssa
90E'BF'66'EK'T SLE'80'6Z'9T'T (sz @10N) sajgehed 1310
Z10'vE'95'8s 6L9'TT'ET'BY (€2 @10N) sa|qeded apei)
81Z'S6'E9'0T'L £8L'7T'09'85E (5z pue gz a1oN)sSuimoliog
0Z-1eN-TE TZ-1EN-TE

‘suonesado panupuodsp

Bulpnjaxa ‘sjuajennba ysed pue yseo ssa| ‘sajqeded Jayio pue apes3 ‘sBuimollog pue sueo| Suieaq 1sassiul ‘Igap 33U UM sapnjoul Auedwo? 3y 906 PUe %SE usamiaq ones Supiead ayl daay o3 s} Adjod s Auedwod
ay] ‘3gap 3au sn|d [exded |e303 Ag papIAp 3G3p 18U st Yaiym ‘ones Supiead e Buisn |eyded sioyuow Auedwo) 3y “seJeYS MaU anss| Jo sJapjoyaJeys ol [eyded uinjal ‘siapjoyaleys ol JuawAed puapiap ayl 1snipe Aew
Auedwo) 3y3 ‘8in3onas [ended ay3 1snfpe Jo ulBIuIEW O "SIUBUIADD [BIDURUL B JO SJUSWSEINDEI Y} PUE SUDNIPUOD JIWOU033 Ul s3Fueyd Jo 1yJ) Ul sjuBWISN[pe sayew pue ainPnas jeyded sy safeuew Auedwo?) ay)
*s1apjoyaseys AIBUIpIO 03 SPUBPIAID JO [3A3| 3}

SE ||am se |eided uo uinjal 3y} sioluow Juawadeuely *55aUISNG 3Y) JO JUSWAO[IABP 2ANINY UIRISNS 0] PUR JIUSPIJUOT JB}IBL PUE ‘JO}PaII “10ISBAU] UIBIUIEW O} Se O aseq |e3des Buouis e ujejuiew o3 st Aajod sdnoid ay)
‘anjea JapjoyaJeys Yy asiuwxew o) s| Juawafeuew jeyded s Auedwo) syl jo aadalgo Aewpd ay L

“juased ay3 jo siapjoy Aunba ay3 03 3jqeInguiie seaasal Aynba Jayio |je pue wnjwaid aieys ‘saseys asuaiayaid ajqiuaauod ‘jended Alnba panssi sapnpul jeides ‘quawafeuew jended s Auedwo) ay3 jo asodind ayy Jo4
jJuawadeuew jeyde)

v ®10N

pajwp 33eAlq siadojanag [emuny




“TZ0T Y2JelA ISTE U0 se ysu Auauind ugiaio) ou si 318Y) SNYJ "TZ0T Y4Bl ISTE uo se Ajijiqer| 1o 15asse Aduanind uBiaioy ou si aiay|

Nsi Aduaina udiaiod
P68'TEPS'S %S =
(v68'TE'S'S) %S - pa.Inou| 3507 3JuBul4
DZ0c UIEW 151
619'25'LE'T %S =
(6T9'25¢ZT) %S = Pa.INaUu| 3507 aJUBU|4
1202 Y3JeN ISTE
XEJ Aq
2.40j8q Jyoid uo 39313 | s3ed 352493u) Bunisixe Ul 3sEAIDIP3sEAIDU]

0ZOZ 'TE YdJelN pue TZ0Z
TE YdIeN 3B P|RY S31V|IGe| [RIDUBUIY PUE SIDSSE [BIJUBULY 3Y] UO PAsEq SI SIYL *S)51 333Jew 3A1393dsa) Ul saSuByd paLwINSse ayl Jo 198448 8y 51 Wa 550| J0 11j0.d JuBA3|al 33 JO AJIAISUSS By ]
:sashjeue Apaizisuas syl Suije|najes ul apew uaaq aaey suondwnsse uimo||oy sy L

pue s3355€ |BI2UBUI-UOU 3Y3 pue ‘suoisirosd ‘suonesijqo JuswaJaI-3sod Jayjo pue AYiniels Jo sanjea SuiAiies 8y) Uo sa|qeLIEA I3 IEW Ul SuaWwaAoW Jo 1oeduwl By) apnjaxe sashjeue ay|
0ZOZ'TE Y2IBN PUB TZOZ'TE YoJBIN 18 Se uoiysod ay) 0] 31e|aJ suordas Juimo||o) 2yl Ul siSAjeue AJIANSUSS By |

"sBel I53J8JU] Ay} Ul SUCHENJIN| JO BSNEI3 31BNJIN|J SIUBLWISAAUI Sulieaq Jsa1aul Suljeoy) JO SMOJ) YSBI 3ININj 33 Yd1ym O3 3Np Si S1EJ 158133Ul MO|4 YSEI By} 0} pasodxa st Auedwod ay
's31eJ 153433 3y}

Ul SUDIIENIIN|J JO BSNEIB] DIENIIN|J ||IM SIUBWISBAUL Suieaq Jsasajul Suneoy) 1o SMOJ) Ysed a1ning B3 ey 3s1 Y3 S 3L S1eJ 15819JU1 MO YSED “S3)BJ 158J2)ul 3yl UI SUOIIENIIN]S JO AsNeIaq
SsjuawisaAul BUleaq 15a121ul paxyy JO SaN(eA Jiey U] SBFUBYD JO 3S1 Y3 51 35U 1] I1SDIIUI BNJBA JIB4 "SI 918 153J3)UI MOJ} YSBD JO S JRJ I53I33U1 IN|BA J1B) 1338 3 UBD %S )R] 158133U)
s A3ed 353183U|

0z0z'T0 |Ndv pue TZ0Z

"TE€ Yolepy Je p|ay Saili|Igel| |E|DUBUL PUE S13SSE [BIDUBULY 3U3 UO P3seq Si Siy | "$ySH 19yJew aandadsad u) sagueyd pawnsse ay) Jo 198443 Y3 Si Way $so| Jo Jjoud Jueaa|al 3yl Jo AJIAIISUSS 3y L
:sashjeue Ayanyisuas ay) Sunenajes ul apew usaq aney suondwnsse Suimo)joy ayL

*suonjesado udiaioj Jo sapi|igel|

Pue s13sse |BlaUBUL-UOU 3Y3 pue !suoisinoid Isuoiiediiqo Juawalal-1sod Jaylo pue Ajiniesd jo senjea SulAiies ay) juo S3|GELIEA 19X JBW Ul SJUSWSAOW JO 1oedWI 3y} SPNIXS SISAjRUE BY L
0Z0Z'TE Yd1ely pue TZOZ'TE UdJe e se uonisod 3yl 03 93ejaJ su0i0as uimo||o) 3y3 Ul sashjeue AYAISUDS By L

'SIUBLISBAUL [DOLAA ‘SHsodap apnjaul ysi 1eew Ag pajaaye sjuswniisuyl [elueuld ysu AJpowwod pue sy 331id Alinba se yans sy aaud Jaylo pue ysu Asuannd Hysu 3.l
158J33u1 251 Jo sadAy sauy) sasudwod ysu 1axJelA s2o1d 19xsew Ul s3FuByD JO 3SNEDAY B1ENIIN]S ||1M JUSWNIISUL [BIDUEUL B JO SMO|} YSED 2Jn3N4 JO 3N|eA Jie) 9yl 1BYI 3511 a3 S 351 3axjJen
¥su 3axae (e

“MO[2q PISLBLULINS 3JB YDIYM ‘S511 35841 JO ydes FujFeuew Joj s101jod s32.8E puB SMalnaJ 510133110 JO pJeog 3yl saanoalqo ysu pue saijod s Auedwo) syl

Yiim 3ouepJiodde Ul padeusw pue paunseaw ‘paljnuspl aJe sysi [e1dueUl 1BY) pue saunpaosold pue sapijod aiendoidde Ag paulaaod aie s3niAloe YsuU [epueul s Auedwo) a3 18Y) S3JNsUR
juawadeuew Jojuas s Auedwo? ay1-ysK 353Y1 Jo JuswaBeuew syl s8as1an0 JusWaSeUBW Joluas s Auedwo) 3yl ysu AJipinbi| pue ysi1 3ipaJd 51 19Ylew o) pasodxa si Auedwiod ayl
*SjuUBLIISaAUl |D0LAS sploy os|e Auedwo)) sy ‘suopjesado

S31 wouy Aj3a1ip anlsap eyl sjus(eainba ysed pue Ysed pue 'se|qealadas Jay3o pue apel) ‘'SUBO| apnjoul s3asse [elaueuyy edipund s Auedwo) ay] rsuoiiesado sy poddns 0} sesjueiens
apino.d 03 pue suojjesado s Auedwo) ayl asueuly 03 51 SNIIGe]) [B1PUEUL 353Y3 Jo 8sodind ulew ay| "sa|qeAed J3y1o pue apeJ) asudwoo sanjiqel| [epueuy jedipuud s Auedwo) ay L

sapijod pue sanaa(qo Juawaseusw ys| [eueul
€ 210N




“S13pU3| BUNSIX Y3IM JSN0 Pa3|(0J 9 UED SYIUOW ZT Ulyiim Bulniew Suipuny 4O S82Jn0s Jo AJaLIeA JUBIDIYNS

£ 0] $53228 sey Auedwo) ay | smoj} ysea paldadxe 4o siseq ay) uo sisesaso) Suljjos ydnoayy uoisod Aypinby| 38u s, Auedwo?) ay) sioyuow Juswadeueyy JuswWaSeuewWw Joiuss Aq usassano ase
$)s51 4INs 03 pajejal saidljod pue sassado.d ‘uoiHpPe u| WooJpesy Jo (a3 ajeidosdde ue yym sjuawalinbas Supesado sAueduio) ay3 198W 03 SPUN [eNINW pinbi| Ul JUSWISBAU PUE ysed jo
wJoy ay) ul Aypinbil uaio1ns ulelulew 03 st 3si Aipinby| uo Adjjod s, Auedwion ay-anp [jej A3y se suoijedijqo s1f 1893 10 33135 03 3|qe 34 30U ||IM Auedwod 3y3 1YY Xs1 3y sI ysu Alpinb
ysu Aypinbry (2

"sjunowe JuiAiied auy3 s 9TOZ ‘10 |UdY LTOZ TE Y2JeW 38 198YS 32uUE|eq 3yl Jo sluauodwiod ay) Joj 3si 1IPaId 0} 3insodxa wnwixew s Auedwo) ay|

‘sjuawAed axew o3 aunjiey [enuajod s,Auediaiunod YEnosy ssoj [elueUl 91ESINW 210JBI5Y] PUB S JO UOHBIIUSILOD 3Y) SSIWIUIW 0} 335 3JE SYWI| 3y L "Ssiseq

[EnuUe Ue uo 51039341 Jo pieog s,Auedwod 3y} Ag pamainai ale s1jwi| 1pald Auediajuno) *Alsedsaiunos yoes 03 pausisse s)jwi| JPaJa Uiylim pue senJediajunod panosdde yiim Ajuo spew
aJe spunj snjdins 4o syuawnsaau) “Aaljod s,Auedwo) ay3 yum aouepJode ul uswuedap Ainseas) s,Auedwo) ay Aq paSeusw si SUOINIISU [BIDUBULY PUE SYUBG U3IM S8JURJEG WOJJ ¥S1 11pal)

sysodap ysed pue sjuawniisul [BPUBLLY

(zT 230N Ja421 Bsead - sajqensoal apet) Joy uolsiaold

Ul juSWIBAOW [1833Q J0j) "siexiew Juapuadapul Aja8le| ul 31esado pue suoldIpsLINI [BJEASS Ul PAIEDO| B8 SIWWOISNI S} SE 'MO| S| S3|qeAIIa) 3pEI) 0} 199dSaJ Y3IM 35U JO UOIEIJUSIUOD

ay3 s:3enjeas Auedwo) ay | A3naas se [eia)e|jod pjoy Jou s30p Auedwo] 8y |°SISSSE [BIOUBUY JO SSEJD Yoea Jo anje Suihlied ayi st 23ep Suiodas 343 1€ ysi 3paJd 03 2JnsodxXa WNWIXeWw
81218 519W01sNI 104 33uBLIBdXD [82140351Y ‘AJISNPUI JO S JNEJAP SB YINS SJ01D8 JUNOIIE OJU| SBHE) XUIBW UOIsIA0Ld Y| "SaNUaA3) Paj|iqun pue S3|BAI202) SPEJ) JOj IDUBMO||E S50| JIPaJD
pajoadx@ ay} aandwiod 03 xiew uojsiaoid e sasn Auedwo) 8y “uled Jo ssof Juswiiedw) 3y SSSSE 03 [9pOLU 50| JIPaId paldadxa sasn Auedwod 8yl ‘0T Sy pul Jo uoiidope Jo Junoase uQ

‘ssauIsng

JO B5JN0D [BWIOU 3y} Ul SWI3) 1PaJsd sjuesd Auedwo) sy) ydiym O3 SIWOISNI JO SSBUIYLIOM JIPaJd 3y} Supojuow Ajsnonujuod pue sywyj upasn Suiysigelsa ‘sjeacsdde ypasd ydnoayy
Juawdas ssaulsng yoea Aq pafeuew usaq sAeme sey 3sli JIPaJ) 'SISWO]SNI WOL) PAUJES SNUSASI WOJ) PAAIISP 318 pue paindasun AjjesidAl ale anuaaal pajjigun pue s3|geAlasal apes]
S3|qEAIDID) IpeIL

“ainsodxa 31paJd Wnwixew ayj sjuasaldas s1asse [eidueUY Jo Junowe SuiAlie) 3yl jsu 1ipaid 03 ainsodx3

*SUBLWINJISUl
|elpueUl J9Y30 pue suoidesuesl adueyaxe uBialo) ‘SUOIINYISUI [BIJUBUL PUB SyUBQ UM slisodap Suipnjaul ‘s213ia1308 Suipueuy S1| WoJy pue (Sajgeaadal apeJy Ajuewud) sanianoe Junesado sy
woJy ysu JipaJd 03 pasodxa si Auedwo) ay] *ssof [eiaueuly e 01 Suipea| ‘193U JSWOISNI JO JUSWNIISUI [BIUBUI B 13pUN SUOIIES|qo S 183w Jou [jim AuedI1aunod 18U XS1 2y sI 35l 31patd
yst 3pasd (q




6ZS0CET SO'TT 000'T8°00°L L8T'ST'IP 6Y'S EVTIL 8Y'S

L52'19'e6'E LSZ'19'e6'E sduimoslog uo ajqehed 15aia1u|
SOT'96'89'S6'T S0T'96'89'S6'T a|qeded sesuadx3
£19'Z6'E £19°26' 3WodU| pasiajea
066'Z8'S¥P'TT 066'78'SH'ZT Aped pajejas yum syisodsg Anaas
£55'98'8 £5598'8 s|qeAed 1d/2IS3/4d
898'68'75'T 898'68'ZS'T ajqeAed snuog pue Azejes
STE'YI'STLS SZEPT'ST LS ysodag ajesodio) Jau
6¥9'69'T9°€0C 6v9'69'T9'€0' S13Y30 Wwoid -
08Y'€9'5H'8S 08Y'E9'SH'RS syueq wouy ueo| ssdny uelpu| -
s3uimolioq wial-2uo) Jo sallnIew u_..ot_._uﬁ

San||Iqel] |E[oueu)} Jay30 - SP1I[IGE]| [E[UBUlj Juaiind
8L6°LS'9FLT 8L6'LS'IV LT Asuopy uonuaay|
¥€£0'99'60"TY ZSP'S0TT'8E 785'09'L8'T (seouejdanoe uey) Jay1o) sajqehed apeuy|
S[QEAEJ apeiL - SaRI|Iqel] [epuedly Juaian)

899'0£'06'2S 899'0€'06'2S 53|1ed PIle|9Y WOI) PIAIBITY SIIUBAPY
SSR|Iqe]] [EPUEU) 19430 - senliqe]] [elUeUl JUSIInJ-UoN|

L6Z'ET'LE'RI'T L6Z'ET'LE'RI'T SI3Y10 woiy
Z6L'88'SY'6L'T 000°T8'00°L T6L'LO'SY'TL'T ueoq aadny ueipuj :syueg woi4
SUBOT Wdj

|eloL BEELATETEIET sieah g0l T 1eaA T ueyj ssal puewag up 0Z0Z ‘TE Ydiew 1e sy

865'8BY'66'ST'S - ¥85°08'€6/'20'€ 5T0'89'50'80Z

ESLILYLLT ESLL9'LL'T sSuimoulog uo ajqeAeq 1sa1aiu]
7e9'or'TS'veE'T ZE9'0F TS PET sajgeded Jayi0
SOT'LS'E00Y SOT'LS'E0'0Y SIBYI0 WOl -
8PE'SR'6Y'8E 8pE'S8'6%'8E syueq wouy ueoj aadny uelpu] -
sfuimouioq wiue3-3uo| JO SIMINJEW JuaLIN)

SSpIIIqe]] [ePueul} 13Y3Q - seiqe]] [eluely JUsiin)

956'L0'ET VT 956°L0'ET VT Asuopy uonuslay
£2L'V0'06'VE LES'L8'99'TE 98T'LT'ET'E (seoueydasse ueys Jaylo) ssjgeded aped |
3|qeAed apeiL - sell|iqen [eldueuld Juann)

o SBIUERL PAIR|SY WO PAAIBIaY SIOUBAPY
SanIIqE]] [ePUen] 19Y30 - Se|Iqel| [EPUBUl JUS1IN3-UON

6C8T6'S8'9T'T 678'T6'S8'9T'T SIaY30 wou
TIT'E6'LT'SE'T T9T'E6'LT'SE'T ueoT sadny UBIpU| SYuUeg Wol4
T EN

[E30L sieal g uey) aioN siesA S0} T JeaA T ueyy ssa puewsag ug TZ0Z ‘TE YIe 18 5y

‘sjuswAed pPauUNOIsIpuUN |ENI2EIIU0D UO paseq alep Suiuodal ay) 18 SalI|Igel| [BIoUBUL JO S2INIEW [Bn1DBJU0I Sujulewas 3y SulpJedal s|ie3ap sapiroid mojaq 3|qel ay L

sap|jige|| [epueuy Jo sjyoad Ayunzep



Note 44

There is an impact of Coronavirus disease (known as COVID-2019 or COVID-19) on the health of people worldwide as well as on the state of the economy and commerce of
the world in general and on India specifically. This is the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.

The management believes that the impact of the pandemic is short-term and temporary in nature and that the Company's revenue shall normalize in the near future.
Further, the management of the Company has assessed the possible impact of COVID 19 on the recoverability of assets and believes that the pandemic is not likely to
impact the recoverability of the carrying value of its assets including property, plant and equipment, investment properties and trade receivables as at March 31, 2021.
Management does not see any risk in the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due. The Company is closely
monitoring the developments and possible effects that may result from the current pandemic on its financial condition, liquidity and operations and is actively working to
minimize the impact of this unprecedented situation. As the situation is continuously evolving, the eventual impact may be different from the estimates made as of the
date of approval of these financial statements.

Note 45
Previous year numbers have been re-classified/re-grouped to conform the current year's classification.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of Directors
For 5.M. Gupta & Co. For Runwal Developers Private Limited.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn;No 310015E
|

\\Ww \L :

#\

Neena Ramgarhia

\ Pallavi Matkari
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 067157 DIN : 01337787 DIN : 08054518
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date - 30th November, 2021 Date - 30th November, 2021



1103, Olive Dosti Acres,

S. M. GUPTA & CO. %xéli?gi’s z:)&’nwp Hill,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS e

Mob.: 7021170033
E-mail : smguptaco@yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of
Runwal DevelopersPrivate Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Runwal
DevelopersPrivate Limited(“the Company”), its subsidiaryand three associates (the Company,
its subsidiary and associates together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, for the yearthen ended, and notes to the
financial statement including, summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidatedfinancial statements give the information required by theCompanies
Act 2013(“the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India:

a) In case of its ConsolidatedBalance-sheet, of the state of affairsof the Groupas at 3 1"'March
2021.
b) In case of ConsolidatedStatement of Profit and Loss of the profitfor the year ended on that
date.
¢) In case of ConsolidatedCash Flow Statement, the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

HEAD OFFICE .1, BALARAM DE STREET, KOLKATA - 700 006, PHONE : 033-40081601
BRANCH OFFICE : 14B, CAMAC STREET, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA - 700 017, PHONE : 033-40650378



Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidatedfinancial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidatedfinancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidatedfinancial statements.

Information other than theconsolidated financial statements and auditors’ report
thereon
e The Company’s Board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the company’s Annual Report but
does not include the consolidatedfinancial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the consolidatedfinancial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the consolidatedfinancial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidatedfinancial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

e If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard. '

Management’s Responsibility for the ConsolidatedFinancial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidatedfinancial statements that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance,
consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flowsof the Group in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are




reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidatedfinancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidatedfinancial statements, the respective Board of Directors included
in the Group is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.The respective Board of Directors
included in the Group is also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the ConsolidatedFinancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidatedfinancial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of theconsolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. ' '

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company and its subsidiaries, incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.




e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidatedfinancial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidatedfinancial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation. '

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We have not audited the financial statements of the subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs. 800.93 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2021, total revenues of Rs.NIL and net cash
flows amounting to Rs.0.85 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. :

We also did not audit the financial statements and other financial information in respect of two
associates which reflects Group’s share of loss of Rs. 442.40 Lakhs for the year ended March
31, 2021 -

These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors,
which have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of these associate and our report in terms of section 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid associate, is based solely on the report of such other auditors.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
. As required by Section143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

d)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The ConsolidatedBalance Sheet,ConsolidatedStatement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equityand
ConsolidatedCash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of accounts of the group;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidatedfinancial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,
2021taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in India and as per the report of the statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31% March, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”
which is based on the auditor’s reports of the Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial control over financial reporting of those
companies, for reasons stated therein.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose impact of pending litigations which
would impact its consolidated financial position — Refer Note 42 of the
consolidated financial statements.




ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group.

For S.M. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. 310015E

N@f‘:naRam garhia
Mem. No :067157
Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: 30"November,2021 UDIN -22067157AAAAAB5996




Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of Runwal Developers Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Runwal Developers Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Company”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.




Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of
the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate. '




Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.M. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(FRN No. 31001 SES;\Q
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NeenaRamgarhia

Mem. No :067157

Place: Mumbai g Partner

Date: 30""November, 2021 : UDIN - 22067157TAAAAABS5996




Runwal Developers Peivate Limited
Consolldated Balance shest as at 31 March 2021

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment Property
Goodwill
Intangible Asset
Investments In 2 jaint venture/ Assaciata
Mon Current Financial Asssts
Investments
Loans
Cthers
Other Non Current Assets

Current assets

Inventaries

Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and zash equivalents
Loans
Other

Other curment assets

Total Assets

Equity and Habilities
Equity
Share capital
Other squity
Total Equity

Nean-current llabilities:
Financial Liabillties
Bormowings
Qthars
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities {net}

Current llabHities:
Financial Babllities
Trade payables
Shart Term Borrowings
Grher finandial llabilities
Other current liabilitles
Pravisions

Totat equity and Ifadilitles

Notes

~ W A

-]

10
12

13

14
15
16
17
in

19
20

4
22

11

24
25
25
27

28

As at As at
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
iNR INR

78,567,94,504

81,53,40,222

454795427 46,40,49,746
22,118 -
9,85,002 13,46,145
3,4830,17,188 3,5032,79,910
35,24,42,131 30,25,07,476
19,09,23,135 19,15,59,035
2,20,89,554 2,09,77,119
28.73.67.608 60,72, 73,477
$,58,54,36,669 5,90,64.33,730

9,42,18,96,053

13,58,20,31,759

7,17,60,957 9,25,80,056
£5,14,40,524 14,95,85,112
1,02,29,82,044 1.28,88.51,500
8,64,05,251 7.56,04,295
11,17,74,448 11,63,46,528
11,62,82,59,277 15,60,50,99,251
17,21,36,95,936 2151,15,32,981
63,68,290 63,68,250
8,18,47.35,766 7,51,50,16,303
§,19,11,04,056 7,52,13,84,59%
2,80,06,80,333 4,48,56,62,089
- 52,90,30,668
1,33,67.006 96,7:2,340
_10,96,51,853 8,95,52,266
2,92,37,09,201 5,21,33,17 362
49,13,45,085 58,56,2.4,012
9,95.43,989 49,97,62,821
2,04,82,50,829 5.63,21,95,760
3,23,78,92,651 1,62,34,16,267
22,18,49,135 53,52,32,165
5,09,88,82,689 8,87,62,31,025
17,21,36,95,935 21,81,15,32 981

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of the financlal stataments.

As per our report of éven date atmched
For 5.M. Gupta & CO. '
Chartered Accyuntants \\‘
Firm Regn No 5@100;55 40 A

Membership Na: 067157

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th November, 2021

For and on behalf of the board of Directors
For Runwal Developers Pyt Ltd.

ef/ e
/.j%/ Mﬁf‘ i

Mahesh iyer Pallaui Matkari i
Director Directar

DIN : 01337787 DIN - 08054518

Place : Mumbal

Cate : 30th November, 2021




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 315t March, 2021

Note Year ended Year ended
315t March 2021 31st March 2020
INR INR
Revenue from oparations 9 6,37,50,47,151 12,62,50,45,919
Other income a0 46,62,04,593 25,79,64,312
TOTAL INCOME 6,84,12,51,744 12,88,30,10,231
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 31 5,77,78,45,009 11,01,95,98,980
Employee benefits expenseas 32 4,78,54.873 7,71,29,347
Finance costs 33 13,85,00,198 12,97,64,895
Depreciation and amortisation expanses 34 5,17,60,308 5,29,55,421
Other expenses a5 14,21,15,3133 16,24,14,317
TOTAL EXPENSES 5,15,80,77,321 11,44,18,62,959
Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Profit before tax 68,31,74,423 1,43,11,47,272
Share of Profit / {loss) of joint venture/ Associate 15,4582,833 15,16,56,965
Profit/{loss) before exceptlonal items and tax fram continuing operations 83,77,57,256 1,59,28,04,236
Tax expenses
Current tax {22,06,00,000) {52,76,23,502)
MAT Credit entitiemant (3,95,37,705) (29,02,87,361)
Deferred tax cradit/(charge) 3,77,27,990 ¥.09,34,883
Short / [Excess) tax of previous years (45,932} 92,162
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUED OPERATIONS 61,53,01,609 84,59,20,418
PROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCOUNTINED OPERATIONS -
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 61,5301 509 84,59,20,418
Other Comprehensive income
A i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 23,89,603 9,77,990
Remeasurment of actuarial gains and losses
Net [loss)fgain on FYTOC! eguity Securities 7,03,32,3713 7,32,55.344
{ii} Income tax relating to items that will nat be reclassified to profit ar lass {1,83,04,121) (2,16,16,747)
B (i} ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(it} Income 1ax relating to iterns that will be reclassified to profit or toss
Total Comprehensive Income for the geriod 5657,19,464 89,85,37,605
Earnings per equity share
Attributable to;
Owners of Parent 66,97,19,464 89,85,37,005
Non-controlling interest
Basic/Diluted (Face value of Rs, 10 each) 1,051.65 1,410.95

1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per aur report of even date attached

For 5.M., Gupta & COQ, U_O

Chartered Accountants
LR
Iy iy
i K\““}' \

Firm Regn No ¥ 310015E,

Neena Ramga"ﬂiia
Partner
Membership No: 067157

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th Novemnber, 2021

For and on behalf of the board of Directors
For Runwal Developers Put. Ltd,

bl

Maheéh Iyer Pallavi Matkari '}
Director Directar 1
DIN : 01337787 OIN : 08054518

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th November, 2021




IOgeratlng activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit befora tax to nat cash flows:
Depretiation and impairment of proparty, piant and equipment
Profit on sale of Fixed Asset
Profit on sale of Mutual Fund
Loss on sale of shares
Finance income
Finance costs {Considared in financing activities)
Non-Cash Finance Cost
Share of Profit from Partnership and ACPs
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back
Valuation of Mutual Fund
Share of Profit / (toss) of joint venture/ Associate
Operating profit bafore working capital changes

Warking capital adjustments
{Incraase)/decrease In trade receivables
{Increase)/decrease in inventories
{Increase)/decrease in other current and non current assets
{Increase)/decrease in fong term and short term loans and advances
{In¢creasa)/decrease in current investrents
Increase f{decrease) in trade payables, ather current and non current liabilities and provisions

{Increase)/decrease in current assets

Changes due to working capital movements
Adjustments to reserves on account of merger
Net cash flows from operating actlvities

Investing activitles

Proceads from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of property, plant and equipment {including CWIP)
Additions to property, plant and equipment an account of merger
Additions to investment property on account of merger

Additions to intangible Asset

Mavement in Non Current Investments

Interest recaived {finance income)

Addition to Cash and Cash equivalents on account of merger

Net cash flows from / {used in) investing actlvities

Financing activitias

Interast paid

Repayment of long term borrowings

Proceeds from short term borrowings

Net cash flows from / {used in) financing activities

Net Increase f {decrease} in cash and cash equivatents
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Runwal Deveilapers Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the period ended 31st March 2021

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR. INR
68,31,74,423 1,44,11,47,272
5,17,60,908 5,29,55,421
6,64,161) {20,000}
{4,70,530) {6,00,881)
3,84,60,750
{62,77,519) {57,05,326)
45,80,57,706 1,11,20,65,648
36,29,034
{5,738) {3,87,050}
{44,74,06,951) {24,49,02,881)
(7,29,994)
(6,09,242)
73,81,66,988 2,39,52,28,751
2,09,19,099 1,40,93,569
4,39,91,35,707 10,19,42,34,703
30,55,65,157 85,19,99,933
26,56,05,357 18,73,59,570
3,32,46,841
[2,45,70,91,379) {6,54,91,51,295)
[44,39,02,154)
2,53,41,33,940 4,28,78,81,167
20,02,35,347
3,27,23,00,929 6,68,31,09,918
13,86,139
[1,43,21,707) [1,24,58,557]
(4,04,987)
{20,73,05,242)|
{1,96,972)
17,97,06,170 {2,07,57,62,044)
62,77,519 57,09,226
(6,31,69,364)
17,30,48,122 (2,45,40,87,720)
{45,80,57,706) {1,11,20,65,648)
{2,08,52,00,588) {3.88,16,83,458)
49,87,30,730
{2,54,32,58,293} {4.49,50,18,376)
90,260,90,758 {26,59,95,198)
[5,06,50,234} 21,53,45,964
85,14,40,523 {5,06,50,234)

Notes:
a) There has not heen any bonus issue of shares during the year.

) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “indirect Method” as set out in the Ind AS 7, *Statement of Cash Flows’.
¢) As required under Paragraph (20€) of Ind AS 101, the Company has reclassified itams that it recognised in accordance with previous GAAP as one type of asset,
Lhabnhty or component of equity, but are a different type of asset, Hability or component of equity in accordance with Ind AS.

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of Directors

For 5.M. Gupta & Co, {‘ ; For Runwal Developers Pyt Ltd,

Chartered Actountants oo 2

Firm Regn NO 310035%/\,\1 b A

W - \}?‘ e

(W AP 4 o ’?";} ‘M

Negta {mgathla = Mahesh Iyer i Pallavi Matka

Partner Director Directar 4

Membership No. 067157 DIN : 01337787 DIN : 08054518

Date : 30th November, 2021 Date : 30th November, 2021
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterments

1

Genara! Information

The consalidated financial statements comprise of financial statements of Runwat Developers Private Limited ("the Company"}, its subsidiaries and jaint vanture
companies {collectively,"the Group"| for the year ended 315t March 2021,

The Company is 2 private limited Company incorparated in the year 1988 and domiciled in India having its registered office at Runwal and Omkar Esquare, Sth
Flaor, Off. Eastern Exprass Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion {East), Mumbai - 400022,

The Group is engaged primarily in the business of real estate construction, developrment and other refated activities along with this the Group is also into the
business of leasing of mall, windmill power generation and solar power generation,

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution by the Board of Directors on 30th November 2021,

Summary of Sigaificant Accounting Policies
Basis of praparation of financtal statements

The Group's Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Indlan Accounting Standards ("IND
AS") notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 issued by the ministry of corparate affairs under sections 133 read with subsection
(1) of section 2104 of the Companies Act 1956. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by The Institute Of Chartered Accountants of India are also
applied except where compliance with other statutory Promulgations require a different treatment.

All assets and liabilities have baen classified as current or non-current as per the Group's operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule HI [Divison ) to
the Companies Act, 2013,

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiasies as at 31 March 2021, The Group’s investment in jointly
contralled entities are accounted for using the equity method. Control s achieved when the Group Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
invalvement with the investee and has the ability to affact those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and
only if the Group has:

M- Power over tha investee {i.2. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the refevant activities of the investee)

M Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its lnvalvement with the investee, and

» The ability to use its power aver the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majosity of voting rights result in control. To supgort this presumption and when the Group has less than a majerity of the
woting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

* The contractual arrangement with the other vate holders of the investee

W Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

P The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights .

- The size of the group’s hoiding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the ather voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of tha three alements of
control. Consolidation of 8 subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Assets, liabilitles, income and expanses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are intleded in the consolidated financial statements from the date
the Group gains controf until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financiat statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies far like transactions and other events in similar cire tances, If a member of
the graup uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for ke transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustrents are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial stat s to ensure conformity with the
group’s accounting poficies.

The financial statemants of all entities used for the purpose of cansolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Group, i.e,, year ended on
31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different frem that of a subsidtary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposas, additional
financial informatian as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent ta consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary,
unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation proc
(a) Comhine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and
expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabifities recognised in the consaiidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

{b) Offset (aliminate} the carrying amount of the parent’s i t in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business
combinations policy explains how ta account for any related goodwilt.

{c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and fiabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between eatities of the group (profits or
losses resuiting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fxed assets, are sliminated in full). Intragroup losses may
indicate an impairment that reguires recognition in the ¢ lidated financial stat Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies ta temporary differences that arise

from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or Joss and each component of other comprehensive income {OCI) are attributed 1o the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
Interests, #ven if this results in the nor-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the Erandial statements of
subslidiaries to bring their accounting poficies inte line with the Group’s accounting palicies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expanses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on cansolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a foss of contral, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary,
It:

I Derecognises the assets {including goadwill} ard lizbillties of the subsidiary

- Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interasts

» Darecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

P Recognises the fair vatua of the consideration received

B Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

> Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

P Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previousiv recognised in QCI to orafit or loss o retalned aarines, as anbrooriate, as would be reguired fthe




Group had directly disposed of the refated assets or liabilities

The following subsidiaries and jeintly controfled entities have been considered in the conselidated financiat statements:

Name Country of Incorporation Propartion of Praportion of
Ownership of Ownership of
Interast As on Interast As on March
Mareh 31,2011 321.2020
Associate
Wheelaborator Alioy Castings Ltd India 34.26% M.26%
Joint Venture
& Mall Developers Private Lhmited India 49,75% 49.75%
R Retail Ventures Private Limited India 43.57% 43.57%
Runwal Finance India 22.00%
Value Construction SRA India 51.00% 51.00%
Runwal & Kunal Ventura India 4.50%
Runwal Wander Venture India 52.00%

Current v¢ Non-Current ¢lassification

The Group presents assets and liabilltles in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

The Group's normal operating cycie in respect of operations relating to the construction of real estate projects may vary fram project to project depending upen
the size of tha project, type of development, praject complexities and related approvals. Operating cycle for all complated prajects is based on 12 months period.
Assets and fiabilities bave been classified into curreat and non - current based on their respective operating cycle.

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold ar consumad in normat operating cycle
+ Held prirarily for the purpose of trading

* Experted to be realised within twelve months after tha reporting period, or
* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability Is current when:

* it is expected to be settied in normal aperating cycte

= it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* [t Is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to dafer the settlement of the liability for at least twefve months after the reporting period

The Group classifies ail ather hiabilitles as non-current. Deferred tax assets angd labilities are classified as non-currant assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial staternents is in conformity with the generaliy accepted accounting principles requires the Group to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, Habilities, revanues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liability, The estimates and assumption
used in the acGrouping financial statements are based upon evaluation of relevant fact and circumstances as of date of financial statements. Difference between
the actuzl and estimates are recognised in the year in which the revenus/expenses are known/materialised.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, demand deposit and short-term depasits, which are subject to an insgnificant
risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of gutstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integra! part of the Group’s cash management process.




v Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated tmpairment losses, if any. Cost
includes the purchase price and any directly attributable cost to bring the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the itern will Aow to the Group. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statemant of profit and losss during the reporting
period in which they are Incurred.

ltems of fixed assets that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal arg stated at the fower of their net book value and net realisable value and
are shown separately in the financial statements. Any expectad loss Is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost
of the asset and has useful life that is rmaterially diffarent from that of the remaining asset.

The residual values, useful lives and rnethods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The useful life of the assets are based on the
useful lives as per Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013. The astimated useful lives of assets specified in Schedule If to the Companies Act, 2013, are as follows:

Nature of the asset Useful life
Plant and equipment

Solar 25 years

windmill 22 years
Computer 3 years
Vehicle B years
Furniture and Fittings 10 years
Dffice equipments 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expectad from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference betwsan the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is recagnized in the statement of profit and loss, when the assatis de-recognized.

vi Investment Property
Properties, including those under canstruction if any, hatd to eamn rentals andfor capital appreciation are classified as investment property. Investrnent properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumnutated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.
The cost incfudes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects i the recognition criteria ara mat. When significant parts of
the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All ather repair and
maintanance ¢osts are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
The estimated useful life of investment property is 60 years.
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment praperty is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognision of property is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period.

vii Intangible Assets and Amortization .
Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition tost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The amortisation peried and the amortisation mathod for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed 2t least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful Jife or the expected pattarn of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considerad to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
Galns or losses adising from the retirement or dispasal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.
The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:
Makure of the assat Amortisation pericd
Comprter software (ERPY 10 years
Computer software {non-ERP) 4 years

Other Than ERP 3 years




vili Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an Indication that an asset may be mpaired. If any Indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amaunt 5 the highar of an asset's or cash-generating
unit’s {CGU) fair value less costs af disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from othar assets
or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceads its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

in assessing value In use, the estimated Future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markat
assessments of the tirme value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into aceount. I ng such transactions ¢an be identified, an appropriate valuation mode! is used.

These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted market prices or other available fair value indicators.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or eguity instrument of another entity.

il Flnancial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Alt financial assets are recognised Initialiy at fair value , in the ¢ase of financlal assets not recorded at fair value through profit or foss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurament

For purpases of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

+ Financial assets at fair value

+ Financial assets at amortised cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and Josses are either recognised entirely in the statement of prefit and lass {l.e. fair valve through profit or loss
(FVTPL)), or recognisad in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive incame [FYTOCH]).

A financlal asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost {nat of any write down for impairment) unless the asset is designated at
fair valug through profit or loss under the fair value option

* Business model test: The objective of the Group’s business model Is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows [rather than to sell the
instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realise its fair value changas).

+ Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
intarest onthe principal amount outstanding.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar finandal assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the
Group's statement of financial position] when the right ta receive cash flows from the asset is transferred or expired,

Impaisment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recogaltion of impairment loss on the following financial
assets and cradit risk exposure;

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measurad at amortised cost e.g., toans, debt securities, daposits, trade receivables and bank balante

b} Finaacial assets that are debt Instruments and are measured as at FYTOCH

) Lease receivables under tnd AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or ansthar financial asset that resuit frorn transactions that are within the scope of ind AS11 and Ing
A5 18 (referred to as ‘contvactual revenue receivablas,

) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FYTPL

f} Financial guarantes contracts which are not measured as at FYTPL

The Group follows 'simplifiad approach’ for recognition of impalrment loss ailowance on trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises Impairment loss allowance basad on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss an other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment ioss. However, tf credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment toss allowance based on 12-manth ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expectad credit losses resulting from all pessible default events over the expectad life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is 2 portion
of the lifetime ECL which results from default avents that are possible within 12 months after the reparting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flaws that the entity expects to
receive [i.e,, all cash shortfalls), discounted at the origina! EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

a} Ali contractuat terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and simitar options) aver the expected life of the financial instrument,
However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining
contractual term of the financial instrument

b) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or ather credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms,

il Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financiat liabitities are recognised initially at fair value and, In the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and barrowings.

1 uent measyremeant
The measurement of financlal liabllities depends on their classification. Financial liabilitkes are classified as measured at amortised cost or FYTPL. A financial
liability is measured at FVTPLif it is classified axs held-for-trading, ar it is a derivative or it Is designated as such on initial recognition. Gther financial liabilities are
subsequently measurad at amortised cast uslng effactive interest method.
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Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interesi-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EiR method, Gaing and losses are
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an Integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs In the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability Is deracognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled ar expires. When an existing financial Habillty is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the de-recognition of the original Fability and the recognition of a new ifability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
staternent of profit and loss.

i) Qffeetting of firancial instrumants

Finandial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable fegal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

onstructio rials consymabl
The construction materials and consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. The construction materials and consumables purchased for
construction work issued to the construction work in progress are treated as consumed,

Construction work i progress
The construction work in progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of land, development rights, rates and taxes, construction
costs, horrowing costs, other direct expenditure, allocated gverheads and other inctdental expenses. )

Finished stack of completed projacts [ready units
Finished stock of complated projects and stock in trade of units is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Revenue racognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and it can be refiably measured. Revanue is measured at the Bir valle
of the consideration received/receivable net of rebate and taxes.

Revenue from caontracts with customers Is recognised when control of tha goods or services are transferred to the custamer at an amount

that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, Revenue is measured

based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if any, as specified in tha contract with

tha customer.

The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.

The Company constders whether there are other pramises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of tha transaction price
needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of varlable cansideration, the existence of significant financing
components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer, if any.

Revenue from real estate development is recognised at the point in thime, when the contral of the asset is transferred to the custamer,

Revenue tonsists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer alongwith specified internal and external amenities, which have been
identified by the Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly interraiated/ interdependent,

The performance chiigation in relation to real estate devalopment is satisfied upon completion of project work and transfar af contral of

the asset to the customer.

Revenve from Solar Power

The Group has instatled Solar Power Plant at Osrnanabad, Maharashtra. Revenue from the sofar power plant is recognised when the eletiricty generated reaches
the paoint of delivery to MSEDCL and the controi is transferred ta MSEDCL.

Revenue from Wind Mill Power
The electricity generated by windmill is utilised for captive comsumption at the Group's Mafl division situated at Mulund, Mumbai,
The alectricity generated from Windmill is sold to MSEDCL from the inception and the revenue for the same s recognised when the contral is transferred,

Rental income

Rental income is recognized en a straight-line basis over the terms of the fease, except where escalation is in line with inflation and also except for contingent
rental income which is recognized when it arises and where scheduled increase in rent campensates the lessor for expected inflationary costs. Parking Income and
fit out rental income is recognized in statement of profit and loss on accrual basis,

Sale of development rights
Sale of develag t rights is recognized in the financial year in which the agreements of sale are executed, control is transferred and there exists no uncertainty
in the uitirmate collection of consideration from buyars.

Share of profit/ loss from partnership
Share of profit/ loss from firms in which the Group is 2 partner Is accounted for in the financial year ending on {ar liately bafare) the date of the batance
sheet.

Interest income
Interest income s recorded on accrual basis ustng the effactive interast rate (EIR] method.

Other Income

- For aff figancial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). Interest income is included in finance

incormne in the statement of profit and loss,
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Borrowing cost

Interest and specific borrowing cost directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are asset that necessanily take a
substantial peried of time to get ready for thelr intended use or sale, are added to the cost of thosa assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or saie. All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of proﬁt and lass in the period in which they are incurred,

Segmant Reparting

Operating segments are reported In a rannar consistent with the Internal reperting structure proviged to the Chief Opearating Decision Maker

Retirament and ather benefits to amployees

a) Long-Terr Employee Banefits

Defined Benefit Plan

The Group has Defined Benefit Plan for post-employment benefits in the form of Gratuity and is wholly unfunded, tiability for Defined Benefit Plan is provided on
the basis of valuation, as at the Balance Sheat date, carried out by an independant actuary. The actuarial valuation method used by independent actuary for

measuring the liability is the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses on post-retirernent defined benefit plans arising during the year are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

b) Short Term Benefits
Short term employee benefits are recognised as an exp in the stat 1t of profit and loss 2ccount of the year in which the related service is rendered,

t] Termination benefits are recognised as an expense, as and when incurred
Forelgn curvency translations

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevalling on tha date of transaction, Realised gains and losses an settlement of
foreign currency transactions are recognised in the st t of profit and loss.

Fereign currency monatary assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the vear-and exchange rate, and the resultant exchange difference is recognised
in the statemant of profit and loss.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, s lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date. The arrangemant is, ar
contains a lease if, fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangernent conveys a right to use the asset or

assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified n an arrangement.

Einante Lease

Leases whare the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownarship are classified as finance feases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of
the lease at the lower of the fair valuz of the Jeased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the cutstanding liability based on the implict rate of return. The finance
charge is charged to the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalized.

Ifthere is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain the awnership by the end of the lease item, capitalized leased assets are depreciated owver the shorter
of the estimated usedul life of the asset, the lease term and Schedule il as per the Campanies Act, 2013,

ggerating Laasa

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating Jeases, Lease rents under
oparating feases are recognised in the 5t of Profit and Less on straight kne basis, except where escalstion in rentis in line with expected gerveral inflatian,

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Group’s earnings per share are the net profit for the period after tax, The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, otherthanthe
convarsion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, withaut a coresponding change in resources. For the purpose
of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the efuity sharehotders and the weighted average nurnber of shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential shares,
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Accounting for taxes on Income

Tax on income for the current perlod is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax cradits computed In accordance with the provistons of the
refevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments / appeals.

Current Income tax relating to ivems directly recognised in equity is recognised in equity and not in statement of profit and loss, Management periodically
evaiuates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishas provisions
where appropriate.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) cradit, which is equal to the axcess of MAT {calculated in accordance with provisions of Section 115)8 of the Income Tax Act,
1961) over normal income-tax is recognised as an asset by crediting the statement of prafit and loss only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that
the Group will be able to avail the said credit against normal tax payable during the period of ten succeeding assessment years. Defarred tax included MAT credit
wherever applicable,

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date hetween the tax bases of

assets and liabilitles and their carrying armounts for financail reporying purposes at each reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that suffiecient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax to be utlised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are raecognised to
the extent that it has became probable that future taxable arofits wilf allow the deferred tax asset to be recovared.

Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset it realised or the

fiability is settied, based an tax rates (and tax laws) that have been anacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside statement of profit or loss, Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current

incame tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxsble entity and the same taxation authority.

The break-up of the major companents of the deferred tax assets and liabifities as at balance sheet date has been arrived at after

setting off deferred tax assets and labilities where the Group have a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against lizbilities and where such assets and
ligbilities relats to taxes on Income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

Provision, Cantingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingznt liabikities are disclosed in respect of possible abligations that arise from past evants but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the contro! of the Group or where any presant obligation canngt he measured in terms of
future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obiigation cannot be made.

A contingent assets is pot recognised unless it becomes virtualby certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, When an inflow of economic benefits is
probable, contingent assats are disclosed in the financial statements,

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date,

A provisian is made based on a relizble estimate whea it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required te settle an
abligation and in respect of which a retiable estimate can be made. If the effect of the time value of money 1s material, provisions are discounted wsing a curfent
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks spedfic to the liability. When discaunting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as 2 finance cost.

Fair valug measurement

Fair value is the price that would be recsived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in an orderly transaction between market particlpants at the
measurement date. The fair valus measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset aor transfer the fiability takes place either;

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability; Or '

+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset ar llability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is d using the ptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
miarket participants act in their econornic bast interess,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate econamic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the tircumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant abservable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair valve is measured or diselosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whote:

« Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) markat prices in active markets for identical assets or Wabitities

* Lgvel 2 ~ Vatuation techniques for which the iowest fevel input that s significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the fowast level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabllities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group deterrnines whether transfers have ocourred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vafue measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, charaeteristics and risks of the asset
ar liability and the lavel of the fair vaiue hierarchy as explainad above.




8BE'SE'CELE 854°41°25'8 SZ2'8L'S 062159 S65'v7OF SOE'S9BE T 419806 ¢ 635'6E 61 TS 975°£8'96°0¢ oD 0007 6TOZ Iudy Ty
ZTTOVESTR - - FEZ'E0ED'T TEODETE TTLREGRT Tr2'56 65 1 TE0°20T0'0F 652'65 € 0F 000°00DT 0Z0Z UMely £ I
YOS 'v6'L9'BL - - G55'67 98 SLFETEE LB LEPET 90T T ECT 9P ELPR'ED ST6'Z4'08'62 0000007 12T WM TE W
3hjeA 4OO8 3N
EIVB6TESE OIE'RPPITT GIRBY L S6U° LV RS T ¥£0'CC £8 ORI TL0'088S'E Z8T65 TS TY SH19'S6T - 207 yMBN TE W
20£'64"FE LB 6L RE sjesadsi
PP ITY TS TEF'50°5 8997’k L0S'E'6t 9SEC0'LT'T P8ISS Jead ayy a0y a3tetp uoyeasdag
PEL'EE'SO'ZE 9TE'8PYI'TT QI6'87'L SS6'BT'TT'E ZO9'ST'SL T96'8£'79°E £95'9T'60'E SZE68'PE'S T09'S52E'T - 0T0Z Y28 1€ 3y
) JeAU0 Josso| ua jesodsiy
PLETIT'S EFB'SS ¥ 57H'ss 131w JO JUNCIIE Vo VoRIAIdag
80Ty 996798 ¥95'29'91 Prer0'r TETTE 9 9ET'0B'ST'Y 19£'£2'85 123A au Joy a8y uonePRIdRG
TSOTH28L2 ITEBPYOTT 0T&3Y'L 686'/5'¢0'T 2E0'ES'T9 LTFTE'ST'E £8E°62'LET T RT ¥ER'LZ'6LT 6E0Z Hidy Ty
JuaLked) pue :aﬂﬂmuﬂhnﬂ_u
LEB'E6'6S VT ITERY'HA'TT OTE'BY'L 6¥0'LT'SH'T 0T6'5E9T'T H6¥'ET'90°9 TRy §59°ZL'9E'5S GSE'ST'9LTE 000'c00T TZOZ YMEW TE 1Y
L8910 SETOEY - s|esodsig
B 19313 JO WNOIE UD SUOIppY
104" T2'E'T 092°26'67 5£9'68'9 004’258 Tig'60'gL DOR'S/ suonIppY
956'CL RS ETT 91EBYEYTT GTE'RY'L 68L'8Z'ST'T SETOMEOT £89'££°00°6 SOF'TLE9Y 86R'96'5£°55 BSE'STRL'ZE o00on'nT 0207 y2aei 1€ 1Y
{ze¥z0TTED) Bse’erzog) {sez'aL™s} los£TE 1s) rE7'PE T (v0E %1 B9) [£56'5T 6L E) Josu0d 30 S501 up sesodsig
T680FFE TEE'EC'M 7199v9°9T OF'FT's 00582 1233 JO JUNOIIE UD SLUCINIPPY
_ s|esodeig
L55°95FT'T 0145848 £9°8E'ST 096’645 &0C'F3 SET'O5'FT SUCIIPPY
BE6'9L'00'STT PL0'99'SZ'07 9ETLT'ET L6%°0L°89'T VEYLL'TH ETL'L6'PS'S EBE'LE'TES EZT'F'LERS 65E'ST'9LTE ooo'no‘oz 6T0T idy Ty
3500
HNI pl ] ¥NI NI Wi oN) HN| o) UNE
T [T CAT T —Amuge
* d i s3u oydas
ELT] AS10H [enaE ) N 193 Al B0 saPIYBA puR aINUUINg puE yuey IpIEng puw) plotjasg

wawdinba pue yuejd *Apadosg
£ 20N

SWIIIEIS JEDURUL] PRIEPOSUDT OF SAYON

PRI RBMiy tonaq | b




990'H) EELP SO0 PD'EE LY
9L 6 O 9t A
LTPS6 LY SY LTH'SE'LP'SE
65T SE 09 692 SE 09 ¥
0ZE'PSZ6 0EVsT6
0L6'0RE9'E 045'08'£53'C
650 C8 PE 65T T8 VE
TI0TL'LS 180°2L°LS
059'57'SL'T 059'97'5L°T
9TL'0E'80°05 9T£'0E'B0'05
9TL'DE'S00S 9TL'0E'80°05
91£'0%'80'05 oTL'0£°80°05
Ul NI
eyoL sjjun e

6TO0Z |udy Ty
0Z0Z YHEN TE W
TZOT YMEWN TE 3T
anjep joog 19N

TIOZ YA TE Iy

13915W 10 JUNOE U0 Lole129.dag
«IB3A 3L 10y 331eyD uonezaIdag
QZOT Y2eA TE IV

1983910 JO UN0IE U uolRPRIgAQ
Jeah ayy 10y adJeyd uopepaldag
6TOZ Jlsdy T 2w

wawntedw pue uojiepasdag

TZOZ YMeW TE IV
sjesndsig
SUCRIPRY

0ZOT UDIEW TE 1Y
sipsodeig
suonippy

BTOZ v T 1y
B

Apadosg Juamnsang
¥ #0N



309887 AN

SbTOr'EL SPT OV EL
T0058'6 00586
ApbTELE Qb ZE LE
EFTIO'E EHTTY'E
£0E°TL'EE EOETL'EE
ZOT'D6'E T97°06°E
THTR6T 01867
BEP'LT LY S LT
BerLT'it BPY LT LY
feog'ot’es ) {08’ DT'ELT)
TLB'E'T 746967
EBZTH'ET'E €9TTIPETE
[ [T
auemyos
IR0 .

6107 [udy T W
0Z0Z YR TEIY
TZOZ MBI TE W

snjea yoog 1o

TZOZ MR TE Y

sespdsig

Jeah ay3 so0y 9dieyd uonenasdag
OT0T Y8 TE Y

sjesodsiqg

Jead ayy Joy adleys vonepasdag
6107 idy T v

Juzuledun pue UQRRZIHMUY

TZ0Z Yorem TE I
siesodsic
SUCLUPPY

OZOZ YEN TE W
sjesodhig
SUORIPPY

STOZ dv T v
3507

«R2s5E FqEiue|
5 #l0N



Runwal Developers Private Lim_ited
MNotas ko Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6
Goodwill

Goodwill on Consalidation

Note 7
Investment in loint Venture Company
Rrnall Developers Pyt Ltd -Class A (19,990,000 shares of is 10 zach)
Rimall Developers Pyt Lid -Class 8 (647142 shares of Rs 10 each as on March 2016 and 47142
shares of fs 10 each March 2018 onwards)

Opening Pickup
Add : Share of Reserves and Surplus

R Retail Vanturas Pvt Ltd CCPS Series 2 (20,31,00,000 shares of Rs. Each)
Opening Pickup
Add : Share of Reserves and Surplus

Associates
Wheelabrator
Opening Pickup
Add : Share of Reserves and Surplus . vt

investment in partn ip firms {joint ventures
Runwal Finance [Capital Account)
Runwal Finance [Current Account)
"Value Constructions SRA
Other investments - Association of Persons {AOP) {Joint ventures]
Runwal & Kunal Venture )V
Runwal Wonder Ventuse

31 March 2021
INR

22,118

225118

31 March 2021
INg_
1,99,00,000

2,63,99,567

87,06,24,967
{47,65,591)

1,03, 20,00,000
(3.62,02,596)
13,94,74,250)

17,20,86,000
{8, 76,46,566}
19,88,22,684
3,15,07 43,804

13,22,73,284

348,30,17, 188

31 March 2020
INR

31 March 2020
INR

1,99,00,000
2,63,99,567

59,45,09,198
27,61,15,769

2,03,10,00,000

(3,62,02,956)

17,20,86,000

(8,76.46,565)

2,99,61,60,972

20,000
75,37,301
32,8042,323

{17,96,366)
17,25,15,681

3,50,32,79 910

—t

The comnpany {"Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Ltd") ceases to he a subsidiary of Runwal Developers Private Limited (RDPL) on 25th Septembar, 2019 as the company has
issuad 12,22,705 equity shares of Rs. 100 each Hence., tha parcentage holding of RDPL has reduced from 71.87% to 34.26%

A, Value Construction SRA
Totat Capital of the firm - Value Construction SRA

Name of the Partners

1.Runwal Developers Private Limited
2.5ubhash Runwal

3.5angeeta Lalwani

4.vhas Lalwant

Note §
Nan Current lnvestments

Invastment in equity instruments:

3

Equity instruments of other companies [carried at fair value through Diher Comprehansive Income!
Chruva WollenMills Pyt Ltd {25,867 shares of s 10 each)

tnvestiment in Mutual Fund {carvled at fair value through P&
Aditya Birla Mutual Fund {carried at FVTPL)
{C.Y - NIL, P.Y - 25,104.81 Units|

Tanancy Rights

Note 9
Non-current financial assets - Loans
Loan to tenant

Security Deposits#

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
500060 50000
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
51.00% 51.00%
9.00% 9.00%
20.00% 20.00%
20.00% 20.00%
300.00% 100.00%
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
32,94,42,112 25,91,09,73%
- 1.00,62,737
2,30,00,021 3,33,35,000
35,24,42,133 30,25,07,476
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
17,77,25,000 17,77,25,000
1,31,98,135 1,39,34,035
19,03,23,135 19,14,53,035

—_— ey



# Security deposits are towards utility deposits, earnest money daposits and towards other deposits which are repayable on demand

HNote 10
Non-current financial assets - Others

Fixed Deposits

Note 11
Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities)

Deferred Tax Asset / {Liabilitles)
MAT Credit entitlement

Note 12

Other Non-Current Assets

Advance income tax (net of provisions)
Advance Against TDR **

Qther Non-Current Assats

Cthers #

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
2,90,89,554 2,09,77,719
2,30,89,554 2,09,77,719
—l
32 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
{10,96,61,862) (22,50,89,970)
- 3.95,37,704
{10,96,61,862) {8,95,52,266)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
9,01,99,122 40,76,04,891
5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
13,41,68,486 13,66,68,486
1,30,00,000 1,30,00,000
28,73,67,608 60,72,73,a77

# Other advancas are towards purchase commitments, are non - interest bearing in nature and shall be setteled against future purchase of such assets

“* Advance against TDR are paid towards purchase commitents of TDR, are non interest bearing and shall be settled against future purchase.

Nota 13
Inventories
Work-in-progress
Finished gouds

Note 14

Trade receivables
Trade receivables outstanding for a pericd exceeding six manths from the date they were due for
payment
Other Trade receivables

Total trade receivables

Note 15
Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
In current accounts
In deposit accounts
Cash on hand

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Balanges with banks:

= On current accounts

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cash on hand

Note 16

Current Financial Assets - Loans

Security deposit #

Inter Corporate Deposits *

Fixed deposits with tenure more than 3 months but less than 12 months

# Security depasits are non- interest bearing and are recievable on demand.
* Inter corporate deposits are paid are non interest bearing and repayable on dermand.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
3,65,13,09,935 2,2594558,134
5,83,15,86,118 11,58,74,73,626
9.‘13.13.965053 13,88.20,31.759
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
1,43,60,322 2,38,09,770
5,74.00,635 £5,87,90,286
7,17,60,957 9,26,80,056
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
23,6847932 13,60,24,864
97,49,554 85,00,000
48,43,039 50,50,248
85,14,40,524 14.95.55!112
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
83,68,47932 13,60,34,864
97,349,554 85,00,000
48,43,039 50,506,248
3_29.4,40,524 14,95385,112
31 March 2021 31 March 20:2_.’.;
fNR INR
4,53,49,622 6,468,217
96,74,92,422 1,19,563,49,922
1,11,40,000 2,78,13,361
1,02,39,82,044 1,28,88,51.500
m




Note 17
Current Financial Assets - Others

Other advances #
Interast Receivable

# Qther Advances are repayable on demand

Note 1B

Other Current Assets

Balances with Revenue Authorities

Loans and advances to amployses *

Prepaid Expanses

Advance against Land/TDR/Goods/Expenses/Othersk
Advances recoverable in cash or kind

Interest Accrued but not due

*Loans and advances to employees are adjusted against future salaries.

31 March 2021

INR

8,05,35,691
58,69,561

8,64,05,251

31 March 2021

INR

7,01,389
12,806,056
59,97,587

9,25,16,243
1,10,09,573

2,59,200

11,17,74,24%

31 March 2020

IMNR

6,99,76,131
56,28,164

7 56,04,295

31 March 2020

INR

7,01,389
7,05,528
52,83,429
9,94,51,656
83,77,835
326,691

11,53.45!523

# Advances against land/ TOR/Goods/Expenses/Cthers are towards purchase commitments, are non - interast bearing in nature and shall be settled against future purchase

of such assets
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Nota 20

Other equity
Capitat Reserve

INR
At 1 Aprll 2039 {3,45,87,17,064)
Add: Adjustment to Reserves on amalgamation of RDPL, OEPL, RPPL,
VPDBFL and RBPL 8,91,57.764
At 31 March 2020 {3,36,95,59,300}
At 31 March 2021 !3,35!95,59,3002
Capital Redeemption Reserve

INR
At 1 Aprit 2019 50, 00,000
Less: Adjustment to Reserves on amaigamation of RDPL, OEPL RPPL,
YPOBPL and RBPL {50,00,000)
At 31 March 2020 -
At 31 Barch 2021 N
Securities Pramlum

INR
At 1 April 2013 2,52,28,60,170
Less: Adjustment to Reserves on amalgamation of RDPL, OEPL, RPPL,
VFDBPL and REPL {10,26,82,400}
AY 31 March 2020 2,42,01,772.770
At 31 March 2021 2,42,01,72,770
Development Rebate Reserve

INR
At L Aprll 2019 71,138
Less: Adjustment ta Reserves oh amalgamation of RDPL, OEPL, APPL,
V#OBPL and RBPL {71,138)
At 31 March 2020 -
At 31 March 2021 -
General Reserve

INR
At 1 April 2019 2,25,00,000
At 31 March 2020 2,25,00,000
At 31 March 2021 2,25,00,000
Retained earnings

INR
At 1 April 2019 7.54,76,44,204
Add: Adjustment to Reserves on amalgamation of
RiJP‘L, OEPL, RPPL, VPDAPL and RBPL 15,36,14,724
Lass: impact of transition to Ind AS 115 {18,54,19,990)
Less: MAY Cradit adjustment (7,04,07,917)
Add: Tatal Comprahensiva Income For the year 259,85,37,005
At 31 March 2020 §,34,39,68,026
Lass: impact of transition to Ind AS 115
Lass: MAT Credit adjustment [3,95,37,705)
Add: Tatal Comprehensive Income for the year 65,48,39,314
At 31 March 2021 8,95,92,64,635
FVTOO) Reserve

INR
At Aprll 2019 9,79,29,806
At 31 March 2020 9.79,29,906
Add: Addition during the year 5,44,17.855
At 31 March 2021 15.23,47,660
Total ather equity
At 1 Aprll 2019 5,73.72,88,253
At 31 March 2020 7,51,50,16,302
At 31 March 2021 8,18,47,35,766
Nature and Purpose of Reserves
1) Capltal Reserve .

Capital reserve comprises of Rs.35,718 lakhs on account of merger in the year 2018-19 of Runwal Realty Private Limited ["ARPL"), Runwal Projects Privata
Limited ("RPPL") and Runwal Township Private Limited ("RTPL"Jhave merged inte Runwal Develapers Private Limited resulting it a negative capital reserve of
Rs, 10,175 lakhs, negative capital resarve of 28,640 lakhs and a postive capital resarve of Rs. 3,097 lakhs.

Further, during the year 2019-20 Odean Exhibitors Private Limited {"QEPL"), Veear Property Developers {Bombay} Frivate Limited (*VPDBRL"}, Runwal Builders
Privats Limited {RAPL) and Runwal Praperties Private Limited ("RPPL") have merged inte Runwal Develapers Private Limited resulting into a Positive Capital
reserve of Rs, ILE Lakhs, negative capital reserve of Rs.34 lakhs and a postive caphal reserve of Rs.953 lakhs.




2) General reserve
General reserve has been created on account of the scheme of amalgamation with Subodh Construction Private
limited as on 31st March 2007,

3} Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings are the profit that the company {including all merged entities) has earned till date, less any

dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

4) Securities Premium
On account of merger of RRPL and RPPL being accounted for using the pooling of interest metheod, the securities
premium of the respective companies as appearing on the appointed date of merger is merged into RDPL's reserves.

5) FVTOCI Reserve
FVTOCI reserve includes the fair value gain or loss of investments in equity instruments designated at fair vaiue
through Other Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS 109.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notas to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 21

Non-turrent financial lizbilities - Borrowings
Secured:
Terrn Loans From Banks - Secured

From Cthers
7 % Reedemable Preference shares

0.01% Redeemable Preference sharas#

Loan from related party
Others

31 March 2020

31 March 2021
INR MR

1,35,17,66,504 2,79,45,88,792
1,36,85,91,329 1,68,37,13,297

64,590,000 &4,90,000

17,38,32,000
8,70,000
2,80,35,80,333 4.48,56,62,089

* The company has issued 6,49,000 7% Reedemnable preference shares of Rs. 10 each in consideration of Merger. The RFS shall be redeemable at par at the option of

Transferee Company anytime zfter five (5) years but before 20 years from the date of alletment.

# The company has issued 1,73,83,200 0.01% Reedemable Mon - cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each in consideration of amalgamation of Runwal Builders

Private Limitad ('RBPL", Runwal Properties Private Limited {'RPPL’) , Veear Property Developers (Bombay} Private Limited (VPDBPL'} and Odeon Exhibltors Private
Limitad {'DEPL"} with RDPL The RPS shall be redeamabla at par at the option of Transferee Company anytime after five [5) years but before 30 years from the date of

]

1

Loae taken from
|Bank of Baroda | LRD 33 Crs)

Secured againgt Guarantee given

Secured by lease rentals of Rmall Mulund.

2

raank of Baroda (LRD 40.22Crs}

Secured by lease rentals of Rmall Mulund.

Monthly EMI of Rs.54,76,200till 1an
2024, last EMI on 29-2-24 of

115,99 60,248
fonthiy EM! of Rs.35,47,812 till Dec
021,

Equal monthly instaliments of Rs

3ICICI Bank | car loan) NA
1,56,064 for 60 months upto October
4J1CICI Bank [ car loan) NA Equal monthly installrents of Rs

Union Bank of India

Solar Power Plant Project secured by
hypothecation of 10MW Solar Power
Plant Plant & Machinary and mortgage of
underlying land.

1,46,490 for 60 months upto
[December 2025

2 year moratorium period from
March 2015 {e February 2017,
Thereafter, in 120 monthly
instaliments of Rs. 30.47 lakhs
beginning from March 2017 and
ending in Feb 2027,

Term loan for Construction from ICICI Bank {Mirvana)

The loan is secured by exclusive charge by
way of registered mortgage on H)
propertyii] scheduled recaivables and all
insurance proceeds both present and
futureiil) security of all rights, title,
interest, claims, benefits, demands under
all project documents both present and
futureiv) escrow account alongwith all
manigs credited/deposited thersin and all
imvestments in respect thereof

Repayable in 24 monthly installments
commencing from 15th December,
2021.

“l

Term Loan from Standard Chartered Bank

The facility, all interest thereon, costs,
charges, expenses and all other monies in
respect thereof shall be secured by: 1)
Exclusive charge by way of registered
mortgage on the Praject Elagante along
with the underlying Land. 2) Exclusive
charge by way of hypothetation on the
cheduled reci bles & Escrow account

of the Preject , all montes credited f
depasited therein and all investments in
respect thereof.

Rapayable in 14 quarterly instalments
of Rs.21.43 o from Feb"20




Bank of Barada (L&D 29.50 Crs}

Term loan under future rent receivable
scheme of Bank of Baroda , Secured by
Agraement of assignment of rent
recelvables and equitable mortgage of
some cormmercial shops situated in R+
Odean Mall, Ghatkapar East, admeasuring
a leasable area of 53,505 5q.ft.

Manthly EM) of Rs.47,65,000 till fan
2024, last EMI on 29-2-24 of
Rs.25,37,662

Bank of Saroda {LAD 14.84 Crs)

Term [oan under future rent receivable
scheme of Bank of 8aroda, Secured by
Agraement of assignment of rent
receivables and equitable mortgage of
same carmmercial shops situated at R-
Qdeon Mall, Ghatkopar East, admeasuring
2 leasable area of 53,505 5q.ft.

fonthly EMI of Rs.12,9 1,600 tifl Jun
2022,

Jul 2022 to Dec 2023- Rs. 18,11,000/-
Jan 2024 to May 2026~ Rs. 44,68,375/-
last M on 30-6-26 of Rs.1,10,75,063/

B.. Secured Loans from Others:

Sr. |Loan taken from Secured against/ Guarantee given Terms of Repayment
L
1 jline of Credit from Aditya Birla Finance Ltd tife Insurance golicy of Mr. Sandeap Interest is paid monthiy

Term Loan frem Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

[Runwal & Mr. Subodh Runwal, premium

thereof invested in units of

I A -
1} Exclusive charge by way of reglstered

mortgage on unsold units in R-Anthurivm
2} Exclusive charge by way of registercd
mortgage an unsold units in R-Square
upto 7th Floor 3} Exclusive charge by
way of registered mortgage on unsold
units in R-Square from Bth to i4th Floors.
3] Personal Guarantee of Sandeep

[ Runwal to the tune of Rs. 75 crores 4]

DSRA Equivalent to 3 month's interest on
pustanding amount te be maintained in
the form of FO with Lien marked to TCHFL
during the currency of loan.

1} 29 equal monthly instaliments of
Rs. 5.33 crores & last maontly
installment of Rs. 5.43 crores 2} 30
monthly installments of 2.5 crs

Term loan frorn Aditya Birla Housing Finance Lvd

Unsold inventory of *The Residance™ &
“The Reserve" Projects

* |Repayable in 24 monthly installments

commencing fram 1st October, 2023,

Demand loan frorn Aditys Birla Finance Ltd

Aditya Birla Financial Ltd sanctioned line
of credit against insurance policies of
Rs.27 Crores agalnst unencumbered and
tradabie securities.

Validity of facility : One year from the
date of first disbursement from March
2018 and such option to renew at the
sole discretion of ABFE. hased on
written request received from

Note 22

Non-current financial lisbilities - Others
Security Deposits (at amortised cost}
Advances from others

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

INR

INR

52,50,30,668

52,30,30,668




Mote 23
Provisions
la) Provision for gratuity

{b} Provision far laave encashment

Note 24
Trade payables
Trade payables

(i} total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small

enterprises

{il} total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Retention Money
Others

Far explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer 1o

Note 44

Note 25
Short Tarm Borrawings

Balance with Bank Cverdraft Accounts

Note 26

Other current financial Nabilities

Current maturitles of long-term borrowings

Indian Rupee loan from banks »

From Others®
Inter corporate deposit

Dther pavable

Interest Payable on Borrowings

*Security deposits are non interest bearing and repayable on demand.
#Refer note 6 for details of partnership firm

Note 27

Other current liabilities
Advances - Others
Statutory Remittances
Advance from customers

Sundry Daposits from customers

Note 28
Current Provisions

Provision for employee benefits:

Gratuity
leave encashment
Provision for CSR
Provision for tax {current)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
iNR INR
82,723,475 96,72,340
50,87,531 ;
1,33,67,006 95,72,340
— _——————+
31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
INR INR
3,23,17,186 2,87,60,582
31,67,20,943 38,22,05,452
14,23,07,956 17,46,57,578
49,13,45,085 58,56,24,012
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
9.95,43,989_ 49,97,62,821
9,95,43,989 49,97,62,821
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
38,49,85,348 58,45,53,480
40,03,57.105 2,03,61,69,649
- §7,15,14,325
1,24,51,40,622 2,40,05,81,049
1.77,67,753 3,93,67,257
2,04,82,50,829 5,6321,55, 70
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
20,26,72,642
4,75,61,243 7,59,18,045
2,55,42,82,830 73,80,98,503
43,33,75,936 80,83,99,628
3,23,78,92,651 1,62,3%,16,267
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
5,26,640 1,33,247
6,22,495
- 74,75,416
22,05,00,000 52,76,23.502
22,1849,135 53,52,32, 165




Aunwal Devalopers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 29
Revenue from aperations

Sale of flats

Income from rent

Sale of solar power

Sale of WIND pawer
Other oparating ravenues
Business Support Service

Nate 30
Gther Income

Firanee Income
Intarest Income on fixed deposits
fnterest \ncome on income Tax Refund
interest Inesme oh Other Deposits
interastincome on ICD

Proflt £ [Loss) on sals of tangtble fixed assets

Income from sub latting

Profit f [Loss) on sale of Mutuat Fund

Other non-operating Incorne {nat of directly attrl

h

tosuchi

Share of profit from Firm

Shara of profit from AQP
Miscallanenus income

Fair Value gain Mutual Fund (FVTPL}
Sundry Balaness Written Back

Gain on loss of control of WACE

MNote 31
Cost of construction and development gxpenses

Censtruction Material and Qther Expenses

Note 32

berefits exp

Salaries and wages
Staff welfare expenses
{aratuity Expenses

Note 33

Hinance costs

Interast

- On fixed period loan

- Dividend on redeemable Preference Shares
- Gthers

Finance charges

Total interast expense

Less Capltalised in WIP

31 March 2022 31 March 2020
INR INR
6,17,34,20,820 12,28,08.83,944
5,58,75,385 14,31,21,551
2,98,98,277 5,11,06,879
45,81,793 53,71.910
7.51,70,277 12,79,61,635
2,60.00,000 £0,00,000
§,37,50,47,151 12,62,50,45,919
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
31,20,649 57,09326
5,453,276 21,592
21,118,455 22,88,711
4,93,140
6,64,161 30,000
18,00,000
4,70,630 600,881
.
6,788 2,293
- 1,84,752
1,13,78,543 8,183,635
- 7,294,994
44,74,06,951 24,43,02,881
6,08.242
45562!04559! 25 579554!312
3t March 2021 31 March 2020
iNR iNR
5.77,78.45,009 11,01 9598 980
5!7?l78l¢6!009 11501!955985980
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
IR INR
4,59,88,300 7.55,42,744
11,53,038 301,418
7,13,536 684,185

d!7§54!873

7.71,29347

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR

45,50,52,370
4,61,348
6470411
25,44,105

{52,60,24,037)

2500198

1,10,86,37,286
184,063
35,29,034
32,43,700

[98,59,29,728)

S Y



Note 34

Depredation and amortization expense

Depraclation of tanglble assets

Dapreelation of investment proparty

Oepreclation of Intangible assets

Note 35
Other expenses
Power and fusl
Purchase of TOR
Repalrs and maintenance
Building
Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Legal and professional fees
Payment to ayditar
For Audit Fee
For Tax Audit Fees
Advertising and sales promotion

Corp Soclal Responsibility Exp

Licence Renewal Feas

Mall Managemant Expenses
Motor Car Expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Genaral administration costs
Brokerage Charges

Sundry Balances wioff

Wind M| Expenses

Sofar Power Plant Expenses
Lass on sale of shares

Payments to the auditor:
As auditor*

Audit fee

Tax audit fae

* No payments have baen made ta Auditors in any other capacity.

31 March 2021

31 March 2029

iNR MR
4,21,45,446 4,33,10,839
32,54,320 92,54,320
361142 3,890,262
5!1?560 208 5I29!555421

31 March 2021 31 ntarch 2020
INR INR

1,25,60,976 1,71,58,261
12,71,823 5,265,454
57,92,787 34,69,042
2,13,594 15,18,188
1,55.11,987 1,15,34,958
60,896,461 £0,28,722
17,21,800 15,58,500
1,90,000 1,90,000
19,83,592 46,26,834

1,73,14,143
50,116 9,59,598
$9,57,472 1,58,50,974
143,583 3,58,037
3,15,68,637 4,24,47,740
2,448

108,568,836

20,18,476
32,55,640 36,08,776
2,35,85410 1,20,05,004

38460750

14.21,15,333 iﬁszé 13,317
17,21,800 15,58,500
190,000 190,000
19,11,800 17,48,500




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Nates to Consolidated financial statements
MNote 36

Earnings per share {(EPS)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR,

Profit attributable to equity holders:
Continuing operations 56,97,15,464 85,85,37,005
Dis¢ontinued aperation R .
Profit attributabie to equity halders for basic/ diluted earnings: 66,57,19,464 £9,85,37,005
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS* 6,36,829 6,365,829
Basic/ Diluted EPS 1,051.65 1,410.95

* The wetghted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury share transactions during the year. There have been no other
transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

Note 37
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's Consolidated financial statements in confarmity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclasure of cantingent lizbilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustrent ta the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the financial statements were
prepared. The estimates and underlying assurptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the year in which the estimates are
revised and in any future year affected.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following Judgements, estimates and assumptions which have significant effact on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Tanes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses ta the extent that it Is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
togather with future tax planning strategies.

impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on the assumptions sbout the risk of default and expected loss rates. The Graup uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs ta the impairment calculations, based on the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looki ng estimates at the end
of each reporting period.

Defined benefit plans {gratuity banefits):

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuariat
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the deterrmination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term naturs, 3 defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assurnptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate, in determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interast rates of government securities in
currencies consistant with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly avallable mertality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in respense to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates far the respective countries.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value fess costs of disposal and its value
in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or obsarvable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The vaiue in use calculation is based on discounted cash flow model. The cash flaws are derived from the budget for the
next five years and do not include restructuring activities that is nat yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the cash
Benerating unit being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fais values of financial assets and financial Rabilities recorded In the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using appropriate valuation techniques. The inputs for these valuations are taken from observable sources where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
Judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerstions of varlous inputs including liquidity risk, credit risk , volatiity etc. Changes in
assumptlons/judgements about these factors could affect the reportad Fair value of financial instruments.




Runwak Develapers Private Limited
Nates to Ci lidated financial

Note 38
in jaint company
B Mall Developers Privata Umited {"RMDPL")

The Group has a 49.75% interest In R Mall Developers Private Limited ("RMDPL"}, = joiat

d in mall

gement of the R City Mall, Ghatkopar. The Group's

interest in RMDPL Limited is accounted for using the squity method 1n the consolldated financial statements. Summar|sed financial infarmatlon of tha jolat venture, based

anits ind A% financiat 2 and rex

marised balancs sheet of RMOPL a5 at 31 M.

Current assats
Hon-current assats
Current liabliities
Non-current lisbilities
Net Equity

Proportion of the Graup’s ownership

LM d sta t and lass of the RMDPL;

Ravenue from oparations
Cther ircome
Cost of raw material and components consumed
Depraciation & amortizathon
Finance cost
Employas bensfit
Other expense
Exceptional ltem
Profit before tax
‘Tax axpense
Profit for the year [continuing aperations)
Other Comprehessive ncome/f{loss):
Total prehensive i for the yaar (c g op

Asat
31 March 2021

INR

78,82,8,148
4,87,60,55,256
90,59,61,797
2,92,40,39,507
1,83,93,34,000

#1,25,81,563

As at
31 March 2021

with the carrying amount of the Investmant in consolidated financial statements are sat out helow:

As at
31 March 202¢
INR

INR

32,95,53,460
5.11,24,08,041
50,52,53,959
3,08,72,96,699
1,84,39,10,893

91,73,45,66%

Asat

Group’s sharg of profit far the year
Change in Securtites Premium

Group's share of Secutirtes Premium reductlon for the year

R Ratall Ventures Private Umited ("RRVPL")

99,79.47,087
1,8541,266

17,06,22,884
15,37,53,200

5,11,85,730
49,17,24,973

3,32,01,557
4,30,43,704
(98,42,187)
2,63,256
{95.78,920.09}
{47,65,518}

31 March 2020
MR

1,98,91,95,620
3,54,68,179

18,58,51,247
27,13,34,97¢

9,00,61,781
76,64,13,038

72,10,.22,75%
16,65.49,354
55,44,73,405
533,077
§5,50,05,482.00
17,61,15,227

The Group has 3 43.57% intersst in A Retall Ventures Private Limited {("RAVPLT, a joint venture invslved fn constructlon of Residential and Commerdial proparties, The

Group's Interest in RRVPL is accounted for using the eguiry
on its Ind AS financtal statements, and reconciliatien with the carrying amount of the investment In

mImar 3 ARVPL as at 31 March 2021:

Currant assats
Non-currant assets
Current liabilltles
MNon-currant lishifitins
Nak Equity

Propartion of the Graup’s ownership

ummarised sta s of the ARVPL:

Revanue from operations
Other Income
Depreclatton & amantization
Other sxpense
Prafit befare tax
Tax expense
Profit for the year {continuing ogerations}
Other Comprahensive icome/(loss):

Total comprehensive income for the year (continulng operations)

Graup's shara of proflt for the year

t ised fi lal i lon of the joint , based
Iidated financkal are set out balow:
As at Ag at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
3,74,19,54,027 3,25,80,26,197
1,52,33,53,857 1,42,89,77,965
68,81,52,579 7,51,75,183
4,75,06,46,107 4.65,47,20,548
(17.34,91,202) 18,28,91,568}
{7,55,90,117} [3,61,15,85¢)
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR. INR
5,94,14,34 29.04,831
72,R1.082 11,231,435
17,05,95,189 7,574,329
{11,84,61,925) (7,29,70,923)
{2.78,35,833) 64,082
(2.06,26,093) {7.40,55,005}
26,450
{9,05,99,633) 17,40,55,005.29}
(3.94,74,260) 13.22,65,766)




Whaelabarator alloy Castings Limited ("WACL")

The Group has 3 34.26% interest in Wheslaborator Alloy Castings Limlted {"WACL™), an associate involvad in Real Estate business. The Group's interest in WACL is

accounted for uging the equity method in the consolldated financial st Surnmarised financtal i

f ion of the iat

stataments, and reconcitiation with the carrying amount of the i tinc lidaved finznctal

Summisis lance sheet of WALL as at 31 Mar. 21:

As at
31 March 2021

ara set out helow:

INR

based an its Ind A3 financial

As at
31 March 2020

INR

Current assats
Hon-eurrant assets
Current liabilities
Non-current Habiliies
Met Equity

Proportion of the Group’s awnership

Summarised statament of peofit and loss of the WACL:

11,10,07.76,790
6,95,54,991
5.45,10,29,919
3,91,24,99,500
82,68,11,352

28,32,65,573

Asat
31 March 2021
INR

Revenue from operations 12,27,71,77,014

Other income 2,76,62,667
Cast of raw material and components consumad 9,72,32,06,635
Depreciation & amotization 4,04,96,507
Financa Cast 59,20,11,533
Employee bansflt 15,63,21,402
Other expensa 1,05,09,72,095
Profit before tax 74,18,31,41%
Tax axpanse 15,01,19,506
Profit far the year {continuing aperations) 58,17,01,913
Other Comprehensive Incoma /(loss): 4,11,349
Tatal comprehentive i fox the year [continulag op hans) 58,21,13,261.20
Group’s share of profit for the year 13,94,32,003

20,17,67,52,518
24,65,64,201
15,24,81,00,005
4,53,06,18,527
24,46,58,095

8,38,33,568

As at
31 March 2020
INR

1,B1,46,667
(1,67,68,80,000}
4,65,40,407
72,51,21,166
14,73,21,000
76,32,66,000

1,26,50,003.77
43,40,089
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated flnanclal statements

Note 40
Employee Benefits

{a} Defined Benefit Plans

&, Gratuity

Gratuity is payable to all eligibie employees of the Company on retirement, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms of the
provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act 1572, or Campany's Scheme whichever is more beneficial. Benefits would be paid at the time of
the separation based on the respactive Schemes.

Changes in the present value of the deflned benefit obligation are, as follows :

Gratuity {Funded)

31 st March 2021 31 st March 2020
INR INR
| Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the year
1. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 98,05,587 82,256,055
2. Interest cast 6,70,702 5,38,342
3. Current service cost 33,62,926 29,44,948
4. Past service cost
S. Liability transferred InfAcquisitions 3,44,192
6. Liability Transferred out / Divestment {15,46,322}
7. Benefits paid directly by employer {13,41,367) {10,25,768)
8. Benefits paid
9. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions {7,38,683)
18. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions {11,99,349) 11,58,061
11. Actuarial changes arising fram changes in experience adjustments {4,51,571) {21,36,051)
12. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 89,086,115 98,05,587
Il Change in fair vaiue of plan assets during the year
1. Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year -
2. Interest Income -
3. Contributions paid by the employer -
4. Benefits paid from the fund -
5. Assets transferred out / divestments -
6. Return on plan assets excluding interest income -
7. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -
It Net asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
1. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year {(89,06,115) {98,05,587}
2. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year
3. Amount recognised in the balance sheet {89,06,115} {98,05,587}
4. Net (liability)/ asset- Current {89,06,115} {98,05,587)
Net {liability)/ asset- Non-current
IV Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year
1. Current service cost 33,62,926 29,44,943
2. Interest cost on benefit obligation (Net) 6,70,702 6,38,342
3. Total expenses included in employee benefits expense 40,33,628 35,83,290
V Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
1. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions : {7,38,683) -
2. Actuariaf changes arising from changes in financial assumptions {11,99,349) {9,77,590)
3. Actuarfal changes arising from changes in experience adjustments {4,51,571} -
4. Return on plan assets excluding interest income -
5. Recognised in gther comprehensive income {9,77,990}
VI Maturity profile of defined banefit obligation
1. Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting periad) 6,26,640 1,27,801
2. 2nd Following Year 646,244 2,01,312
3. 3rd Following Year 7,57,444 1,80,827
4. 4th Following year - 8,34,884 6,76,071
5. Sth Following year 9,54,269 2,38,858




6. Sum of years 6th to 10 years 44,69,26%9 31,31,318

7. 5um of 11 years and above 73,08,041 2,61,65,274
VIl Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:

1. Increase/{decrease) on present value of defined henefits abligation at the end of the year

{i) One percentage point increase in discount rate {5,91,640)
{ily One percentage point decrease in discount rate 6,69,821
{i) One percentage point increase in rate of salary Increase 6,66,954
{ii) One percentage point decrease in rate of salary Increase {5,99,957)
{i) One percentage point increase in employee turnover rate {74,475)
{ii} One percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate 73,526

{i) One percentage point increase in Medical Inflation rate
{ii} One percentage point decrease in Medical Inflation rate
2. Senstivity Analysis Method

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would oceur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity anafysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected
benefit oblfigation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

‘Gratuity (Funded)
31 st March 2021 31 st March 2020
IMR INR
Vil The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total
Insurer managed funds
IX Actuarial assumptions
1. Discount rate 6.84% 7.76%
2. Salary escalation 8% 8%
tndian Assurad Lives Indian Assured Lives
3. Mortality rate during employment Mortality {2006-03) Mortality (2006-08)
4. Mortality post retirement rate NA
For Service 4 years For Service 4 years and
and below 10%p.a. below 10%p.a.
For Service 5 years For Service 5 years and
5. Rate of Employee Turnover and above 2% p.a above 2% p.a

Notes :
{i} Ihe actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the denned benetit obligation were carried out at 315t March, 2021, the

present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.

{ii) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance shaet date for the estimated
term of the ohligations.

{iil} The salary escalation rate is arrived after taking into consideration the seniority, the promotion and other relevant factors, such as,
demand and supply in employment market,




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements

Nate 41
Reilated party Disclosre
A} List of retated parties
{i) Subsidiary
Avalor Devefopers Private Limited

{ii)  Associate
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited {subsidiary upto 26.09.2019)

{iii}  Key Manag it Per |
Kishorkumar fain
Pallavl Matkari
Sanjay Daga
Wiahesh lyer (w.e.f 01.03.21)

{iv}  Raelative of KMP
Babita Daga

(v}  Entities where KMPs have significant influence
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited
Rurwal Farms Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Histyle Ratail Private Limited.
Avalor Retail Private Limited
Galleria Retall Private Limited.
Runwal Constructions

{vi)  Jloint Venture
R mall Devetopers Private Limited
R Retail Ventures Retail Pvt, Ltd.

{viiy  Partnership Firm JAOP
Runwal Finance
Value Construction SRA
Runwal and Kunal Yenrivre
Runwal Wonder Venture

B) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of husiness:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Sr.
N f i
Ne. ature of transaction / relationship INR INR
1 Sale/Purchase of Material
Sale
Runwal Constructions 358972 6,64,259
Bhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited 99,360 41,596,264
Horizon Projects Private Limited 25,25,600 83,95,229
R retail Ventures pyt Ltd 18,49,200
Histyle Retail Private Limited. 3,57,402
Purchase
Dhruva Woolen Mills Pvt Ltd - 10,147
Runwal Constructions 3,23,977 2,45,390

Horizon Projects Pvt Ltd 1,81,709 1,47,200




2 Income fram sub-letting

R retail Ventures pvt Ltd 32,90,279 18,00,000
3 Reimbursement of expenses

R Retail Ventures Pvt Ltd $8,500 1,00,000

R all Developers Pvt Ltd 100,000

4 Advance received against material supply

Histyie Retait Pvi Ltd 2,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

R Retail Ventures Pvt Ltd - 5D 8,82,50,000
Repayment of Advance

Histyle Retait Pyt Ltd 3,00,00,000

R Retail Ventures Pvt Ltd - SD 8,82,50,000

5 Sale of Electricity
R tall Developers Private Limited 4,78,98,277 6,11,06,879

6  Business Facility Services
R Mall Developers Private Limited 69,90,000 69,60,000
R Retall Ventures Private Limited 3,00,00,000

7  Maintainance service given
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 15,87,612 21,40,995

8 Investment in Patnership firm/AOP

Runwal Kunal Venture 17,896,365 |4,65,248)
Aunwal Wonder Venture {10,63,70,965) 14,00,000
Runwal Finance (9,72,01,205) 30,41,51,408
Value Construction SRA 34,31,061 62,24,472

9 Share of Profit / Loss from AQP/Firm

Runwat Finance 5,727 2,826
Value Canstructions SRA 1,061 (528)
Runwal & Xunal Venture 3,834,752

10 Security deposit given
Given
Horizon Projects Pvt. Ltd. 24,00,00,000

Repaid
Horizon Projects Pvt. Ltd. 31,65,00.000 8,84,00,000

Security depasit taken
Repaid
Runwal Constructions 20,23,133

11 Intercorporate Deposits Received

Taken

Arizne Orgachem Private Limited 24,03,00,000 §86,78,00,000
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited 22,75,00,000
Repaid

Ariane Qrgachem Private Limited 1,37,68,14,325 54,97.85,675
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited 44,60,00,000

14 Intercorporate Deposits Given

1VEN

Harizon Projects Private Limited 81,40,00,000 72,91,00,000
R Retail Vantures Private Limited {Formerly YRVPL] 1,00,00,000 16,43,50,000
Avalor Developers Private Limited * 16,00,00,000

Repaid

Horizon Projects Private Limited 76,05,07,500 90,71,00,000
R Retail Ventures Private Limited {Formerly VRYPL) 5,58,50,000 12,51,00,000
Avalor Developers Private Limited 8,00,00,000

15 Investment in Equity shares
Avalor Developers Private Limited 1,00,000




16 Investment in Preference shares

R Retail Ventures Pt Lid 2,03,10,00,000
17 Directors Remuneration
Mr 5anjay Daga 61,96,140 1,11,78,624
Mr dahash lyer 7,168,785
18 Amount received from relative of director
Bahita Daga 1,50,00,000
19 Amount repaid to refative of director
Babita fraga 1,50,00,000
€} Amount due to / from related parties 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
1 inter Corporate Deposit
Given
Harizon Projects Private Limited £9,99,92,500 B4,65,00,000
R Retail Ventures Private Limited (Formerly VRVFL) - 4,58,50,000
Avalor Developers Private Limited 8,00,00,000
Received
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 53,65,14,325
2 Security Deposit
Given
Horizon Projects Pvt. Ltd. 16,56,00,000 48,21,00,000
3 Investment in Joint Venture
Runwal Finance {8,96,43,903) 75,5730
Runwal Waonder Venture 6,61,44,716 17,25,15,681
Value Construction SRA 33,22,73,384 32,88,42,322
Runwal Kunal Yenture - {17,96,356)
4 Investment in Equity Shares
Avalor Developars Private Limited * 1,00,000
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited 17,20,86,000 17,20,86,000
R Mail Developers Private Limited 4,62,99.567 4,62,99,567
Dhriva Wollen Mills Private Limited 18,58,54,395 18,58,54.395
5 1 tment in Prefe e Shares
R Retail Ventures Pwt Ltd 2,03,10.00,060 2,03,10,00,000
&  Sale of Electricity
R Mall Developers Private Limited 1,54,54,800
7  Sundry Debtors
Runwal Constructions 3,59,211 2,18,835
Dhruva Woollen Mifls Private Limited - 15,79,585
Horizon Projects Private Limited ¥E,15,495 1,13,13,816
R Mall Developers Pvt Ltd (1,04,10,105) €9,60,000
Ariane Qrgacher Pyt Ltd 9,965,964 21,04,707
Histyle Retail Pvt Ltd {1,00,00,000)
R Retail Ventures Pvt Ltd - SD {8,82,50,000)
§ Sundry Creditors
Chruva Waolen MIlls Pvt Ltd - 10,147
Runwal Constructions 3,34,806 2097909
Harizon Projects Pvt Ltd 2,87828 1,06,119
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Comp tion of key g 1t per | of the Compary INR INR

Nature of transaction f relationship
Short-term employee benefits

Past-employment pension and medical benefits

QOther long term benefits
Termination benefits
Share based payments

Total compensation paid to key management parsonnel

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevall In arm’s length transactions. This
assessment is undertaken each finandal year through examining the firancial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates. Quistanding balances at the year-end are unsecurad and settlement oceurs in cash.




Runwal Bevelopers Privata Limited
Notes to Standal fi ial sta

Note 42

Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The company does not have any lease commitments where it acts as a lessae.

b. Commitmeants

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and nat provided for:
The company does not have any contracts remaining ta be executed on capital account which it has nat provided For.

QOther Commitments:
There are ne other commitments.

¢, Contingent liabilities
Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard {lnd AS) 37 Provisions,
Conitingent Liabliities and Contingent Assets:

Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2019
Arising during the year

Litiltsed

Unusad amounts reversed

Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2020

Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2020
Arising during the year

Utilised

Unused ampunts reversed

Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2021

Income tax Excise and service Goods and
demand tax demand Sales Tax demand Services Tox Total
INR INR INR INR INR

1,01,15,55,222 4,06,92,832 3,395,546 1,05,26,43,600
49,840 - 28,06,576 28,5640
2,09,81,372 {2,52,33,267) [3,95,546} [46,47,24
1,03,25,86,434 1,54,59.565 28.06,576 - 1,05,08,52,57!
1,03,25,86.434 1,54,59,565 28,056,576 1.05,08,52,57!
3,90,52,670 60,326,813 3,90,52,6M
3.94,54,627 (45,02,471) 3.49,52,15
1,03,21,84,477 1,09,57,094 28,056,576 60,36,813 1,12,48,57,40:

A) The Company has issued an irrecoverable and unconditional corporate guarantes in respect of (oan taken by R Mall Developers Private Limited jointly by the Company and RECOSIA Ghatkopar PTE Lt
and the outstanding amaount 2long with accured interest as on 31st March 2021 Rs: 27854.56lacs.

Nature of Provision

The sales tax department of the government of Maharashtra has completed the VAT assessments w.r.t. the returned flled by the company on the sale of flats to the custorners upto the period March
2014 and determinad the VAT and interest liability. However in compliance with Circular 12T of 2014, the same stands deferrad.

Simitarly, Sarvice tax notice is also issued by Commissioner of Service tax and demand is raised for short payment of service tax on renting of immovable property at Rmall Mulund and also for FY 2011-1
and 2012-13 showing the payment wronghy under as input tax credit availed nstead of showing it as Service tax paid and for few of them an appeat is also filed In CESTAT.

Note 43

Segment Reporting

The company identifies the following activities as indepandent segments
il Real estata business

i} Lease rentals

jii} Elactricity generation
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Note 47
There is an impact of Caronavirus disease (known as COVID-2019 or COVID-19) on the health of pecple worldwide as well as on the state of the economy
and commaerce of the world in general and on India specifically. This is the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021,

The management believes that the impact of the pandemic is short-term and temporary in nature and that the Company’s revenue shall normalize in the
near future, Further, the management of the Company has assessad the passible impact af COVID 19 on the recaverahility of assets and believes that the
pandemic is not fikely to impact the recaverability of the carrying value of its assets including property, plant and equipment, investment praperties and
trade receivables as at March 31, 2021, Management does not see any risk in the Company’s abifity to cantinue as a going concern and meeting its
liabilities as and when they fali due. The Company is closely monitoring the developments and possible effects that may result frorn the current pandemic
on its financiat condition, liquidity and aperations and is actively working to minimize the impact of this unpracedented situation. As the situation is
continuously evolving, the eventual impact may be different from the estimates made as of the date of approval of these financial statements.

Note 48
Previous year numbers have been re-classified/re-grouped to conform the current year's classification.

For 5.M. Gupta & CO. For and on behalf of the board of Directors
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